
 
 

AGENDA 
 
DATE:   Wednesday, March 12, 2025  
PLACE:   Marin Farm Bureau Conference Room, 520 Mesa Road, Point Reyes Station, CA 94956 
 
REMOTE OPTION: Members of the public may participate remotely by Zoom: 
 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87864206727 or by phone: +16699009128,,87864206727# 
meeting ID: 878 6420 6727. Please contact Elise Suronen at (415) 663-1170 ext. 314, or 
sarahs@marinrcd.org  if you have concerns about accessibility.  
(Note that we may move agenda items in this meeting to meet time constraints of 
participants.) 
 
1. Regular meeting opens at 9:00 a.m. Roll call, introduction of guests.  
 
2. PRESENTATION 9:15 a.m. 
Marin County Flood Control District Zone 10 ~ Sarah Phillips, Urban Stream Program Manager 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 9:30 a.m.   
3.   DISTRICT:  

A. Board approval of regular Meeting Minutes. ~ Cora Richard, Bookkeeper  
B. Board approval of the Financial Report and update on Federal Funding Freeze. ~Marcus 

Meggett, Fiscal and Ops Manager, Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 
C. Board approval of amendment to office lease agreement. ~Marcus Meggett, Fiscal and 

Ops Manager 
D. Board approval of MRCD Conflict of Interest Policy. Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 
E. Board approval to provide $600 to California Association of  Resource Conservation 

Districts to pay for federal lobbyists to represent California interests at the Federal level.  
Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 

F. Board decision to hire attorney to investigate the legality of the Marin Resource 
Conservation District being eligible for a ballot initiative. ~Jerry Meral, Director 
 

4. FIRE RESILIENCY 
A. Board approval to execute $250,000 Member Grant Agreement with Humboldt County 

Resource Conservation District for the North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning & 
Implementation Grant Program. ~Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 

 
5. INFORMATIONAL: 10:15 a.m. 
 
Notice of opportunity to comment on Grazing Waiver Renewal. SF Regional Water Board has a 
hearing on May 14th and public comment is open until March 24th on expansion of grazing 
waiver to Point Reyes National Seashore. ~Gerhard Epke, Water Quality Program Manager 
more info at https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/public_notices/ 
 

post office box 1146 / 80 fourth street ∙ point reyes station, california 94956 
telephone 415.663.1170 ∙ facsimile 415.663.0421 ∙ email marinrcd@marinrcd.org 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87864206727
mailto:sarahs@marinrcd.org
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/public_notices/


Partner Updates: 5 min each 
● USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)– Petaluma Field Office Staff 
● Marin Agricultural Land Trust/SAP – MALT Stewardship Staff   
● Point Blue & Students & Teachers Restoring a Watershed (STRAW)– Point Blue Staff 
● Audubon Canyon Ranch - Jim Jensen, Tomales Bay Land Steward and Preserve Mgr 
  
RCD Program Updates (See staff report for details):  
● Marin Water Expansion Alternatives - Water District is analyzing water expansion 
alternatives, one of which includes increasing the capacity of Soulajule which would impact 
many ranching families. Other alternatives are currently of higher priority.  
● Conserving Our Watersheds Program (COW): COW CCAF, phase VII of the COW 
program, has wrapped up. The final report and invoice has been submitted to the Water Board, 
and a summary of achievements is listed in the staff report. COW MILC, phase VIII, has begun. 
The agreement for $1,000,000 is executed eight applications have been received for projects in 
the Stemple Creek watershed and the Technical Advisory Group had its first meeting. The grant 
also funds practices in Drakes Bay watershed of the National Seashore and scoping for those 
projects is expected to begin later this spring. An application for COW GIRL phase IX was 
submitted to the Water Board. 
● Justice Equity Diversity Inclusion (JEDI): The next visit with the Federated Indians of 
Graton Rancheria will take place this spring. David Escobar will soon meet with the JEDI 
Committee to review our implementation process.  
● Media/Messaging/Outreach: Federal Funding Freezes and cuts start hitting West Marin, 
PRLight.  
● Biomass Project: The Marin Biomass Project is revising its findings and 
recommendations chapter. All technical work has been completed. Work is now underway to 
incorporate all technical reports into the final Biomass Utilization Study. 
● Permit Coordination Program (PCP): Green Gulch Streamflow Enhancement Project is 
moving through design towards CEQA. SPAWN has completed its road decommissioning project. 
As of April 2024, Black Mountain culvert project is in the PCP and might be constructed next 
year.  
● Urban Streams Program: The USC carried out two (2) site visits to assist landowners 
with various support, all relating to the health of Marin’s watersheds. Smolt surveying is soon to 
begin in late March with Marin Water and will continue through late May, 2025. USC has been 
attending Pepperwood Preserve’s Learn and Burn (LAB) days for more experience with fire and 
is in the process of being recertified as Type II Fire Fighter. As well, USC attended and provided 
comments on Marin Water’s designs for their Phase II habitat enhancement project sites on 
Lagunitas Creek. USC has been working closely with Supervisor Rodoni’s aide, Morgan, to 
support efforts within Tomales Bay. USC has also been meeting with County Flood Control 
regarding a transfer of funds from Zone 10. Finally, USC has been helping various watershed 
groups, as requested.  
● Carbon Farming Program: Students and Teachers Restoring a Watershed’s (STRAW) 
continues with their implementation season on 5 hedgerow/windbreak projects funded 
through WCB. Year 1 compost and rangeland seeding Healthy Soils Projects have been awarded 
and mostly implemented via the ZeroFoodPrint Block Grant. The 7 carbon farm plans funded by 
SCC, WCB, CDFA CAPGP and Marin County are 75% complete, and the team aims to have drafts 
available for landowners by late May.  

 



● Walker Creek Watershed: Sarah P. closed out this project with CDFW. The project team 
will regroup in the near future to discuss SCC as a potential funding source to apply for 
implementation funds.  
● Funding Opportunities: Tomales Bay Tire Removal, Chileno Creek Restoration, Zone 10 
Flood Control, COWGIRL, Carbon Cycle Inst., Prop 4/Climate Bond, Mitigation Funds.  
● Finance Committee: The next FC meeting is scheduled for March 18, 2024. 
● District: Admin staff have been focused on budget projections, fundraising.  
● Landowner Assistance Provided:  

Urban Streams: 2 site visits, 14 partners and/or landowners were assisted with 
information and 7 landowners and/or partners were educated.  
COW: 3 or 4 ranchers have received consultation, aside from the outreach happening in 
Stemple Creek related to COW MILC solicitation 
CF: 6 

 
6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE 

● Marin RCD is accepting applications for projects. Apply here at our website or call Sarah 
Skinker at (415) 780-2854.  

● March 26. Stemple Creek Ranch. Resilient Rangelands Workshop.  
● May 14. Grazing Waiver Board Hearing 

 
7.   PUBLIC COMMENT 
Public comment for any matter not listed on this agenda, provided that no Board action is to be 
taken.  All statements that require a response will be referred to staff to be placed on the next 
agenda. 
  
8.  MEETING ADJOURNED 

 

https://www.marinrcd.org/programs/home2/apply/


 

post office box 1146 / 80 fourth street ∙ point reyes station, california 94956 
telephone 415.663.1170 ∙ facsimile 415.663.0421 ∙ email marinrcd@marinrcd.org 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
DATE:   Wednesday, February 12th, 2025 
PLACE:   Marin Farm Bureau Conference Room, 520 Mesa Road, Point Reyes Station, CA  

94956 
 
1. A regularly scheduled meeting was called to order by Sally Gale, President, at 9:05 a.m. 

Roll call of Directors: Sally Gale, Mike Moretti, Gerald Meral, and David Sherwood. Terry 
Sawyer was absent. 
Associate Directors: George Clyde, Guido Frosini, Paul Ingle and John Dolcini 
Staff: Nancy Scolari, Marcus Meggett, Preston Duncan, Sarah Phillips, Cora Richard, Fiona 
O’Neill and Sarah Skinker 
Additional Attendees: Jessie Ditmar (STRAW), Libby Kennedy (STRAW), Isaiah Thalmayer 
(STRAW), Joe Deviney (Marin Co Ag Commissioner), Scott Dunbar (MALT), Rick Holland 
(Agroforestry), Martha Davis (Nicasio resident) Chad White (OPR), Regina Pozzi (Marin Farm 
Bureau), Belle Cole and Bill Carney (Marin Biomass Project) 

 
ACTION ITEMS:   
2. DISTRICT: 

A. Board approval of regular Meeting Minutes. ~ Cora Richard, Bookkeeper 
MOTION: Jerry; SECOND: David; AYES: David, Sally, Jerry and Mike; NOES: None; 
ABSENT: Terry; to approve December 2024 Board minutes. 

B. Board approval of the Financial Report. ~Marcus Meggett, Fiscal and Ops Manager 
MOTION: Jerry; SECOND: David; AYES: Jerry, Mike, Sally and David; NOES: None; 
ABSENT: Terry; to approve the Financial Report. 
A topic of conversation during the financial report was how the federal grant freezes are 
affecting Marin RCD. We have a few grants administered by USDA which are frozen right 
now. 

C. Board approval of new Marin RCD Associate Director roles. ~ Nancy Scolari, Executive 
Director 
MOTION: Mike; SECOND: David; AYES: Jerry, Mike, Sally and David; NOES: None; 
ABSENT: Terry; to approve the new roles for Marin RCD Associate Directors. 

 
3. MARIN BIOMASS STUDY 

A. Request that Board execute an amendment to Professional Services Agreement #C05-
2022 (CDW LLC) that adds $89,980 to the contract and extends the term of this contract 
for Marin Biomass project management services. ~ Nancy Scolari, Executive Director and 
Chad White, Biomass Program Project Manager  
MOTION: Jerry; SECOND: David; AYES: Sally, David, Jerry and Mike; NOES: None; 
ABSENT: Terry; to amend Professional Services Agreement #C05-2022. 
 
 

 



 

4. MEASURE A 
A. Board decision to request the County authorize the use of Measure A tax proceeds on 

National Park lands. ~ Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 
MOTION: Jerry; SECOND: David; AYES: Jerry, Mike, Sally and David; NOES: None; 
ABSENT: Terry; to request the County authorize the use of Measure A tax proceeds on 
working ranches on public lands.  
 

5. FORESTRY AND WILDFIRE RESILIENCE 
A. Board approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between the North Coast RCDs to 

cooperatively implement the State Coastal Conservancy North Coast Wildlife Resilience 
Planning and Implementation Grant Program, awarded to Humboldt County RCD. ~ 
Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 
MOTION: Jerry; SECOND: David; AYES: Jerry, Mike, Sally and David; NOES: None; 
ABSENT: Terry; to approve a MOU between the North Coast RCDs to cooperatively 
implement the SCC North Coast Wildlife Resilience Planning and Implementation grant 
program. 

 
6. CARBON FARMING/MARIN CARBON PROJECT 

A. Board approval to execute a $160,454 contract agreement between the National 
Association of Conservation Districts (NACD) and Marin RCD to support the North Coast 
Soil Hub Director. ~ Nancy Scolari, Executive Director and Emilie Winfield, North Coast 
Soil Hub Director  
MOTION: Mike; SECOND: David; AYES: Jerry, Mike, Sally and David; NOES: None; 
ABSENT: Terry; to approve executing a $160,454 contract agreement between the NACD 
and Marin RCD to support the North Coast Soil Hub Director. 

 
7. INFORMATIONAL 
Partner Updates:  
●  Marin Agriculture- Joe Deviney, Marin County Agricultural Commissioner 
No significant update to share this month 
●  USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)– Petaluma Field Office Staff 
No NRCS report this month. 
●  Marin Agricultural Land Trust/SAP – MALT Stewardship Staff 
Scott shared that MALT just closed Parks Home Ranch in Tomales, their 98th easement! This 
makes nearly 59k acres protected. The Small Grants Program is officially open, the theme is 
resilience on working lands. The Small Grants Program is open to all agriculture in Marin Co. 
●  Point Blue & Students & Teachers Restoring a Watershed (STRAW)– Point Blue Staff 
Libby says that they are deep in restoration season. STRAW has finished the SoMar project. The 
rain set them back, into March. All willows are budding! Jesse shared that they are halfway 
done with Poncia/Moreda. Isiah says STRAW is concerned about the federal funding freeze. 
STRAW is starting to think about next year’s projects. They are midway through the WCB block 
grant. In April they will bring a recap of their projects with photos to share at MRCD’s board 
meeting. 
●  Audubon Canyon Ranch – Jim Jensen 
No ACR report this month 
●  Marin Water Expansion – John Dolcini (Marin RCD Associate Director) 



 

John will now be following Marin Water’s expansion plans and reporting back to us. The idea of 
a pipeline from Sonoma County seems to rank highest right now with Soulajule Reservoir being  
second. 3 of 5 directors for Marin Water seemed in favor of removing the Soulajule option. It 
does look like Marin Water is moving forward with raising the spillway on Nicasio Reservoir.   
 
RCD Program Updates (See staff report for details): 
●  District Funding Research - A look at a potential parcel tax to generate revenue for 
district programs.  
●  Marin Water Expansion Alternatives - Water District is analyzing water expansion 
alternatives, one of which includes increasing the capacity of Soulajule which would impact 
many ranching families.  
●  Conserving Our Watersheds Program (COW): COW CCAF, phase VII of the COW 
program, has wrapped up. The final report and invoice has been submitted to the Water Board, 
and a summary of achievements is listed in the staff report. COW MILC, phase VIII, has begun. 
The agreement for $1,000,000 is executed and applications for projects in the Stemple Creek 
watershed are being solicited through the end of February. The grant also funds practices in 
Drakes Bay watershed of the National Seashore and scoping for those projects is expected to 
begin later this spring. An application for COW GIRL phase IX was submitted to the Water Board 
in early January and is in review.  
●  Justice Equity Diversity Inclusion (JEDI): The next restoration site visit with the 
Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria and STRAW is to be determined in early spring. David 
Escobar will soon meet with the JEDI Committee to review our implementation process.  
●  Media/Messaging/Outreach: No articles specifically related to the RCD. Many related to 
Seashore Ranches. George informed PRLight of the Federal Funding Freeze and Nancy is 
providing updates.  
●  Biomass Project: The Marin Biomass Project has drafted its fifth and final chapter and 
has solicited feedback from the Marin Biomass Collaborative for review and feedback. Each 
technical report provided by the technical consultants is now being reorganized and revised 
into chapters of the Final Study. All planned technical work on the project has now been 
completed. Any remaining work will be related to preparing for chapter for integration into the 
Final study.  
●  Permit Coordination Program (PCP): Green Gulch Streamflow Enhancement Project is 
moving through design towards CEQA. SPAWN has completed its road decommissioning 
project. As of April 2024, Black Mountain culvert project is in the PCP and might be constructed 
next year.  
●  Urban Streams Program: The USC carried out four (4) site visits to assist landowners 
with various support, all relating to the health of Marin’s streambanks. Spawner surveying with 
Marin Water has begun and will continue through February 2025. USC coordinated and carried 
out a successfully attended Soil Bioengineering workshop in San Anselmo in mid-January as well 
as a training for staff at the Gallagher Ranch in late January. USC coordinated and led the 
annual Lagunitas TAC field trip and assisted on a prescribed burn with Pepperwood Preserve 
staff. Finally, USC has been helping various watershed groups with fish identification upon 
sightings with photos, supporting Gallinas Watershed Council with meetings at the Civic Center 
re: Lagoon water quality, walking Miller Creek with Marinwood CSD to offer guidance, and 
continuing communications with Supervisor Rodoni’s office regarding the preparation of a 
study to asses the removal of tires from Tomales Bay. 



 

●  Carbon Farming Program: Students and Teachers Restoring a Watershed’s (STRAW) 
implementation season is underway for 5 hedgerow/windbreak projects funded by 
WCB/Measure A. The team is working towards completing 7 carbon farm plans by mid-June. 
The team is working on a website and marketing materials associated with USDA Climate Smart 
Commodities in partnership with Ag Institute of Marin, Gold Ridge and Sonoma RCDs. Year 1 
compost and rangeland seeding Healthy Soils Projects have been awarded and implemented via 
the ZeroFoodPrint Block Grant.  
●  Walker Creek Watershed: Sarah P. closed out this project with CDFW. The project team 
will regroup in the near future to discuss SCC as a potential funding source to apply for 
implementation funds.  
●  Funding Opportunities: No update on Possible Tomales Bay grant to remove tires. 
Gerhard is looking into a new water quality grant opportunity. MALT/RCD are looking into 
grants to fix one of the Pine Gulch Instream Enhancement Project ponds.  
●  Finance Committee: The next finance committee will be held on Tuesday, February 18 
at 10 am. The landlord has submitted a lease amendment for the office spaces we occupy. That 
amendment will be presented at the next finance committee meeting. An optional expansion 
into another office suite is on hold.  
●  District: Executive Director has been focused on meetings and communications related 
to the Federal Funding freeze and following up on the Point Reyes Seashore Buy-out. We have 
also been following up on securing a strategic planning consultant which we anticipate 
happening in February/March.  
●  Landowner Assistance Provided: 

Urban Streams (Dec. + Jan.): 4 site visits, 25 partners and/or landowners were assisted 
with information and 98 landowners and/or partners were educated. 
COW: 3 or 4 ranchers have received consultations, aside from the outreach happening 
in Stemple Creek related to COW MILC solicitation 
CF: 10 landowners assisted 

 
8. ANNOUNCEMENTS & CORRESPONDANCE  

• Our priority funding window for projects implemented in Fall 2025 has closed, but 
Marin RCD is always accepting applications for projects. Apply here at our website or 
call Sarah Skinker at (415) 780-2854.  
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Martha Davis, Nicasio resident, let us know that the second public meeting is taking place 
tomorrow (Feb 13th) for a drought plan for area not covered by water agencies. Does include 
West Marin. The meeting is at 5:30pm and there will be a link to the meeting on Marin Co. 
Public Works Plan website. Martha says she usually googles “Marin County Public Works 
Drought Plan” to find out more.  
 
8.  MEETING ADJOURNED at 11:30 a.m. 



Marin Resource Conservation District 
Monthly Financial Summary

as of 3/5/2025

CASH

Wells Fargo* March February
Checking - Operating Account  407,849$         316,992$         
No-till Drill Account 14,596$           14,595$           
Total Wells Fargo 422,445$         331,587$         

County of Marin**
Checking 656,347$         545,897$         

Total Cash 1,078,792$     877,484$         

OTHER WORKING CAPITAL DETAILS

   Grants Receivable - Open grant invoices - (see page 3) 520,221$         566,682$         
   Retention Receivable - Due from Grantors 9,456$             9,456$             
   Prepaid Grant Funds Received:
       Measure A - less-costs/Adm fees (1,065,835)$    (1,065,835)$    
       Ombudsman Fund (19,793)$          (19,793)$          
   Current Bills To Pay  (see page 4):
       Administrative Expenses 4.13% (12,218)$          (7,073)$            
       Grant Expenses, current to be be paid 13.09% (38,750)$          (210,442)$        
       Grant Expenses, to be paid when funded 82.78% (244,993)$        -$                  

Net Working Capital 226,880$         150,480$         

  

* - Wells Fargo bank balances are reported as of 3/05/2025. However, they are reconciled with the most recent activity 
through 2/28/2025. As a result, there could be adjustments but those adjustments are not expected to be significant.

** - The County account is reported as of 3/05/2025. However, it is reconciled with the most recent "preliminary"
statement through 2/28/2025. There will be adjustments as current statements become available and they could be 
significant.

Page 1



Marin Resource Conservation District 
Monthly Financial Summary

Current Bills To Pay - Pay these bills now. These are bills where 1) the funder has provided payment, 
2) the landowner/contractor cannot wait 60-90 days or 3) they support RCD operating expenses.

Grants Receivable - Money coming in. The RCD submits invoices to our grantors. Our work is paid on a 
reimbursable basis. The expected turnaround time for reimbursement varies but is usually 60-90 days.

Retention Receivable - Money coming in after grant is finalized. Some funders require a withholding 
of 10% of each invoice until the entire project is completed and approved. Once the funder is satisfied 
with the overall grant, the project is deemed complete and the remaining 10% is paid in full to the 
RCD.

Prepaid Grant funds - Received money upfront. This funding has been paid in advance of work being 
completed and is held in our accounts where, upon board approval, it is deducted from the balance.

Page 2



 

Grantor 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 91 and over Total

CA OPR Biomass           72,699 72,699  

CA SCC Carbon         58,438 58,438  

Carbon Cycle Institute               166 166  

CCAF Conserving Our Watershed (COW)           48,045 48,045  

CDFA - HSP Block Grant (ZFP)             3,930 3,930  

CDFA-2021 Healthy Soils           16,155 16,155  

CDFA-CAPGP            13,489 13,489  

Marin County Urban Streams           65,556 65,556  

MMWD 2,939           2,939  

NACD - Soil Hub Director            14,145 14,145  

North Coast Resource Conservation (UCOP)           12,590 12,590  

Straus Home Ranch LLC                 226 226  

USDA Climate Smart Commodities (SMACCC)           90,212 90,212  

USDA GLCI (Grazing Lands) 1,970           4,549                       5,410 11,929  

Wildlife Conservation Board 2022 109,703       109,703  

TOTAL OPEN INVOICES $    424,024  $       27,634  $         4,549  $     64,014  $        520,221  

Retainers  $                -    $                 -    $                -   $       9,456  $             9,456  

TOTAL DUE $    424,024  $       27,634  $         4,549  $     73,470  $        529,677  

80% 5% 1% 14% 100%

Note: Aging is based upon the date payments are(were) expected based upon when the invoice was submitted

and the payment turnaround time of the grantor. It is not based upon the invoice date.

Total due 91 days and over         91 and over

CA SCC Carbon* 7/31/2024 31,210  

CA SCC Carbon* 8/31/2024 27,228  

Carbon Cycle Institute 10/01/2024 166  

USDA GLCI (Grazing Lands)** 06/30/2024 5,410  

Sub-total $       64,014  

Retainers 9,456  
TOTAL $       73,470  

* - Cora and Sarah S. are in contact with the grantor to resolve the open balances.

** - Payment from the federal government is frozen.

 MARIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
 Open Invoices

  3/5/2025

Page 3



 MARIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
  

Bills to Pay
March 2025

Name Date Memo Aging  Open Balance 
Administrative Expenses
Drew Consulting 2/17/2025 Indirect Cost Rate Consultant 16 2,500$              
Duncan, Preston 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 805$                 
Epke, Gerhard 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 27$                   
Farese, Lee 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 1,226$              
Horizon Cable TV 2/28/2025 Internet 5 134$                 
Marin County Farm Bureau 2/15/2025 Dues 18 250$                 
Meggett, Marcus 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 60$                   
O'Neill, Fiona 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 949$                 
Pt Reyes 4th Investors LLC 4/1/2025 March Office Rent N/A 2,373$              
Richard, Cora 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 24$                   
Scolari, Nancy 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 689$                 
Skinker, Sarah 11/30/2024 Reimbursement 95 1,111$              
Suronen, Elise 10/31/2024 Reimbursement 125 227$                 
Smile Business Products 11/17/2024 Copier 108 131$                 
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 CA Native Grasslands Conference 9 350$                 
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 Fireflies 9 68$                   
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 Microsoft 9 198$                 
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 Office Water 9 28$                   
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 Marin Independent Journal 9 14$                   
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 QuickBooks Online fee 9 99$                   
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 RingCentral 9 625$                 
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 SpringAhead 9 330$                 
Total Administrative Expenses 12,218$           

Grant Expenses
Phillips, Sarah 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 627$                 
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 ACE Hardware - tools 9 95$                   
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 Shredder 9 61$                   
US Bank Corporate 2/24/2025 CRAM Wetland Conference 9 1,923$              
White, Chad 1/31/2025 OPR Biomass Project Management 33 16,600$            
White, Chad 2/28/2025 OPR Biomass Project Management 5 13,125$            
Winfield, Emilie 2/28/2025 Reimbursement 5 680$                 
Yee, Orlena 2/28/2025 SMACCC Carbon Finance Contractor 5 1,375$              
Yee, Orlena 2/28/2025 Marin Carbon Project Coordinator 5 4,264$              
Total Grant Expenses 38,750$           
Total Bills to Pay 50,968$           

Grant Expenses, to be paid when funded
Point Blue Conservation Science 12/31/2024 WCB - Design, hedgerows, etc. 64 119,119$         
Point Blue Conservation Science 1/31/2025 DOC Lazy R 33 71,815$            
Point Blue Conservation Science 1/31/2025 WCB - Design, hedgerows, etc. 33 54,059$            

Page 4



 MARIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
  

FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES
February 2025

Name Date Memo
 Open 

Balance 
Administrative Expenses
California Special Disrticts Assn 12/31/2024 Dues 837$         
Duncan, Preston 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 538$         
Farese, Lee 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 403$         
Horizon Cable TV 1/31/2025 Internet 134$         
Meggett, Marcus 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 60$            
O'Neill, Fiona 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 491$         
Pt Reyes 4th Investors LLC 3/1/2025 March Office Rent 1,529$      
Richard, Cora 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 24$            
Scolari, Nancy 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 714$         
SDRMA 12/30/2024 Certificates 48$            
Skinker, Sarah 11/30/2024 Reimbursement 1,172$      
Smile Business Products 11/17/2024 Copier 131$         
US Bank Corporate 1/22/2025 Dreamhost 156$         
US Bank Corporate 1/22/2025 Fireflies 34$            
US Bank Corporate 1/22/2025 Office Water 47$            
US Bank Corporate 1/22/2025 Marin Independent Journal 14$            
US Bank Corporate 1/22/2025 QuickBooks Online fee 99$            
US Bank Corporate 1/22/2025 RingCentral 312$         
US Bank Corporate 1/22/2025 SpringAhead 330$         
Total Administrative Expenses 7,073$      

Grant Expenses
Loamist 1/31/2025 OPR Biomass 42,500$    
Phillips, Sarah 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 1,393$      
Point Blue Conservation Science 12/31/2024 WCB - Design, hedgerows, etc. 121,087$  
Point Blue Conservation Science 12/31/2024 SCC Carbon Restoration 13,712$    
Spatial Infomatics Group 1/31/2025 Biomass  Study Consultant 12,778$    
White, Chad 1/31/2025 OPR Biomass Project Management 13,125$    
Winfield, Emilie 1/31/2025 Reimbursement 493$         
Yee, Orlena 1/31/2025 SMACCC Carbon Finance Contractor 2,054$      
Yee, Orlena 1/31/2025 Marin Carbon Project Coordinator 3,300$      
Total Grant Expenses 210,442$  
Total Bills to Pay 217,515$  

Page 5



GRANT PROJECT START DATE END DATE
TOTAL BUDGET 

AMOUNT
REMAINING 

BUDGET 

REMAINING 
CONSTRUCTION 

BUDGET 

REMAINING 
CONSULTING 

BUDGET 

REMAINING 
OPERATING 

BUDGET 

REMAINING 
PERSONNEL 

BUDGET 
NOTES

Marin County and Special Districts
County Measure A 7/1/2015 4/1/2032 $1,507,493.06 $849,630.00 $709,630.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $130,000.00 Billed through September 2023
County Employee/ Urban Streams 7/1/2016 6/30/2026 $575,000.00 $164,458.44 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $154,458.44 Billed through December 2024
MMWD 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 $25,000.00 $12,065.45 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,065.45 Billed through December 2024
Ombudsman (add'l $ for SP) 7/1/2020 n/a $33,088.38 $26,457.86 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,457.86 Billed through September 2023
County of Marin CF Plans 7/1/2022 6/30/2024 $175,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Grant fully spent
State Funding
CA CDFA Healthy Soils-2021 10/1/2021 9/30/2024 $59,960.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Billed through September 2024- Grant Done
CA CDFA ZeroFoodPrint 12/1/2023 11/29/2027 $45,000.00 $40,243.55 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,243.55 Billed through June 2024
CA CDFA-CAPGP 6/15/2023 6/14/2025 $159,600.00 $106,211.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $5,000.00 $71,211.00 Not yet billed
CA DOC-Working Lands 2/1/2021 12/31/2024 $429,910.97 $222,085.96 $98,246.98 $120,589.89 $3,249.04 $0.05 Last billed Sept 2024
North Coast Resource Conservation (UCOP) 8/1/2023 7/31/2025 $53,728.75 $35,240.74 $0.00 $10,850.93 $24,389.81 Last Billed Dec 2024
CA SCC Carbon 3/29/2022 12/31/2025 $1,000,000.00 $95,216.77 $0.00 $58,500.00 $2,000.00 $34,716.77 Billed through October 2023
CA SCC Carbon Forestry 4/29/2024 4/1/2029 $250,000.00 $250,000.00 TBD
CA OPR Biomass 1/1/2022 3/31/2025 $750,000.00 $133,919.10 $2,716.85 $136,837.93 $15,696.55 $10,060.87 Billed through Dec 2024
CA WCB 2022 12/1/2022 3/31/2027 $478,362.51 $300,010.00 $200,000.00 $15,210.00 $10,500.00 $74,300.00
Federal Funding

SWRCB COW MILC 8/1/2024 9/30/2027 $999,597.00 $995,861.61 $520,000.00 $215,700.00 $162,007.00 $98,154.61 Has not yet been invoiced- personnel is estim    
Point Reyes National Seashore 3/15/2020 12/31/2023 $118,132.34 $51,679.48 $10,521.83 $152.38 $14,299.85 $26,705.42 Billed through Dec 2024
301(h)-SPAWN 12/15/2022 12/15/2025 $17,542.17 $2,630.40 $365.67 $2,264.64 $0.00 $0.09 Billed through June 2023
NACD Soil Hub Coordinator TA 2023 3/19/2024 3/18/2025 $73,428.75 $13,612.60 $0.00 $866.33 $4,003.37 $8,742.90 Billed through Dec 2024
USDA Cooperative Agreement 10/1/2024 8/31/2026 $74,979.00 $69,644.13 $25,348.00 $382.46 $800.00 $43,113.67 Grant frozen, estimate thru Dec 2024
USDA Climate Smart Commodities 8/30/2023 6/1/2028 $2,393,831.35 $2,055,904.19 $482,260.83 $128,046.60 $126,404.78 $1,319,191.98 Grant frozen? billed thru Jan 2025
USDA Grazing Lands (GLCI) 8/30/2023 6/30/2025 $27,139.87 $17,434.18 $3,683.94 $1,118.75 $12,631.49 Grant frozen, billed thru Dec 2024
Foundations and Other Grants
Foundation (Marin RCD) 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 $40,000.00 $19,690.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,690.96 Billed thru Dec 2024
Kurland Foundation (Marin Carbon Project) 7/1/2022 5/24/2024 $160,000.00 $52,116.78 $0.00 $52,116.78 $0.00 $0.00 Billed thru Dec 2025
Audubon Canyon Ranch (CALVTP) 5/8/2024 n/a $5,987.21 $5,987.21 $0.00 $0.00 $987.21 $5,000.00 Have not billed yet
Clara Jeffries Foundation (Soil Hub) 7/1/2023 6/30/2025 $30,000.00 $27,750.60 $0.00 $0.00 $7,750.60 $20,000.00 Billed thru Dec 2024
MALT SAP 11/1/2012 6/30/2024 $1,041,246.69 $48,049.27 $41,759.20 $0.00 $0.00 $6,290.07 Estimate through Oct 2024
Total $10,524,028.06 $5,595,900.28 $2,094,533.30 $760,667.01 $353,274.98 $2,137,424.99

Total Marin County and Special Districts $1,052,612 $709,630 $0 $20,000 $322,982
Total State $1,182,927 $300,964 $361,138 $15,903 $254,922
Total Federal $3,206,767 $1,042,180 $347,412 $308,634 $1,508,540
Total Foundations $153,595 $41,759 $52,117 $8,738 $50,981

Status of Funding Sources 

The following information represents Marin RCD's funding sources, their total balances and intended allocations. The information does not represent allocations within any single fiscal year.



Marin RCD Grants 

Done Grant Funding Status Lead Purpose
1 SWRCB 319h Water Quality on the ranches-dairies 800,000$        Awarded 2020 Marin RCD Implement projects on the ranches in TBay and Stemple watersheds

X 2 Campbell Drawdown Marin 10,000$           Declined Marin RCD Fund participation in Drawdown Marin
X 3 CA Wildlife Cons Board Pacific Flyway 400,000$        Declined CARCD Fund Corda restoration 
X 4 CDFW Walker Creek Estuary 350,000$        Awarded 04/2020 Marin RCD Study Walker estuary for fisheries enhancement
n/a 5 Halleck Creek Horse Stables TBD directed to grant Marin RCD Manure composting
X 6 COM Keys Creek @ Highway 1 Road Project 7,100$             Awarded 2020 Marin RCD Work with STRAW and Colliss Ranch to stabilize landslide with willow stakes
X 7 CDFA Restore California - Stemple 3,126$             Awarded 2020 Marin RCD Work with stemple creek ranch to implement carbon project
n/a 8 Devils Gulch Restoration TBD On hold Marin RCD Work with CA State Parks on fisheries enhacement
X 9 Cambria/Jackson Wines 25,000$           Awarded 02/2020 Marin RCD MCP Coordination
X 10 Carbon Farm Plan Implementation 500,000$        Declined MRCD/STRAW Implement wildlife projects in carbon farm plans
X 11 GrizzlyCorps Member 20,000$           Awarded 10/2020 Marin RCD College intern to help with outreach/education in the ag community
X 12 CA Wildlife Cons Board Technical Assistance 55,000$           Declined CARCD Technical assitance to producers for carbon farming 
X 13 CDFW Lower Lagunitas Assessment 26,000$           Declined SPAWN Work with lower Lagunitas landowners and TAC on salmon enhanement opps
X 14 USDA Rancher to Rancher 25,000$           Declined CARCD Soil monitoring for 1 ranch, training for staff, 1 rancher to rancher workshop
X 15 NACD TA2020 Regional Soil Health Hub Coordinator 109,000$        Awarded 07/2020 Marin RCD North Bay Soil Health Coordinator for RCDs. Coordinate programs and staffing

16 DOC Riparian Restoration Corridor/Cons 430,000$        Awarded 12/2020 Marin RCD Stemple Creek Riparian Project at Rhigetti Ranch
X 17 MWMA Pyrphytic Plants from Marshall - Inverness TBD cancelled Marin RCD Remove broom, eucalyptus, jabada grass with 12 properties around the Bay.

18 PRNS Tech Assist for Ranchers 69,847$           Awarded 03/2020 Marin RCD Assistance to seashore ranchers for RDM sampling, conditional waivers, planning 
X 19 Shovel Ready Projects 1,000,000$     cancelled NoCoRCDs Provide legislators with a list of shovel ready projects in prep for stimulus $
X 20 COVID 5,000$             Awarded 07-2020 CARCD Provide grants to producers for covid protection

21 SWRCB 319H Water Quality in Lower Lagunitas 30,000$           Awarded 05/2021 SPAWN Assist with 2 road projects on ranches
X 22 GrizzlyCorps Member TBD Awarded 04/2021 Marin RCD Intern to help with outreach, monitoring and DEI

23 CDFA Technical Assistance 60,000$           Awarded 08/2021 Marin RCD Assist producers in applications to Healthy Soils Program
X 24 NACD TA2021 Regional Soil Health Hub Coordinator 114,000$        Awarded 04/2021 Marin RCD North Bay Soil Health Coordinator for RCDs. Coordinate programs and staffing

25 COM Support for Carbon Farm Plans 50,000$           Awarded 03/2021 Marin RCD Development of 5 carbon farm plans plus match for grant #29
26 NFWF Monarch Habitat TBD Awarded 11/2021 Gold Ridge RCD Support monarch habitat with landowners
27 SCC Prop68 Climate Grant 1,000,000$     Awarded 12/2021 Marin RCD Farm plans, implementation, designs, ed workshops, no till drill and FIGR collaboration
28 Beaver Dam Analogues TBD On hold TBD Install Beaver Dam Structures at select locations in the Walker Cr watershed
29 Lagunitas Restoration @ Coast Guard TBD On hold TBD Potential collaboration to enhance Lagunitas at the Coast Guard reach
30 MCF-Kurland Marin Carbon Project Coordinator 50,000$           Awarded 05/2021 Marin RCD coordinate and scale carbon farming in Marin county
31 MRCD Internship/Scholarship Fund 3,000$             Awarded 07/2021 Marin RCD support young dissadvantaged interns wishing to learn on-the job-skills 

X 32 Edwards Mother Earth Foundation 592,000$        Declined CARCD [Soil Hub] expand agroforestry component of carbon farm plans in the north coast region
33 PRNS Tech Assist for Ranchers 48,285$           Awarded 09/2021 Marin RCD Assistance to seashore ranchers for RDM sampling, conditional waivers, planning 
34 OPR Marin Biomass Project 500,000$        Awarded 06/2022 Marin RCD Develop recommendations for biomass recovery and utilization processes, infrastructure, and investment
35 MALT Carbon Farming 90,000$           Awarded 03/2021 Marin RCD 2 carbon farm plans and carbon farming implementation
36 COM Support for Carbon Farming 125,000$        Awarded 12/2021 Marin RCD support project develoment

X 37 UC Western SARE Soils Training 78,167$           Awarded 03/2022 Marin RCD [Soil Hub] Soil Health Assessment/Management Through California’s North Coast Soil Hub
38 WCB Monarch Pollinator Habitat 250,000$        Awarded 09/2022 CARCD Install and monitor monarch/pollinator plants in riparian or hedgerow areas
39 USDA Climate Smart Commodities 3,585,745$     Awarded 09/2022 Sonoma County Plan, design, install, monitor GHG reduction and carbon sequestration projects

X 40 NACD TA2022 Regional Soil Health Hub Coordinator 124,000$        Awarded 09/2022 Marin RCD North Coast Soil Health Coordinator for RCDs. Coordinate programs and staffing
X 41 Planning Drought Resiliency 286,239$        Declined Marin RCD Work with UCCE-MALT on drought resiliency watershed planning for producers

42 NRCS Grazing Lands 25,000$           Awarded 04/2023 Gold Ridge RCD [Soil Hub] Staff training on prescribed grazing/ grazing mgmt plans, workshops and education for produce
43 CDFA Conservation Planning (CAPGP) 182,000$        Awarded 02/2023 Marin RCD Carbon farm plans, grazing management plans, soil health management plans



Marin RCD Grants 

44 SWRCB 319h Water Quality on the ranches-dairies 739,872$        Awarded 07/2023 Marin RCD Implement projects on the ranches in PRNS and Stemple watersheds
45 FHA Anadromous Organism Passage (AOP) grant TBD Due 2/6/23 Mill Valley Support Mill Valley StreamKeepers & City of Mill Valley with proposal for barrier retrofit for fish passage    
46 OPR Marin Biomass Project 250,000$        Awarded 05/2023 Marin RCD Develop recommendations for biomass recovery and utilization processes, infrastructure, and investment
47 UC SAREP CA Farm Demonstration Network 53,730$           Awarded 07/2023 UC SAREP (Conser     [Soil Hub] Development and monitoring of field trials, education and outreach on soil health and climate-  
48 DOC Capacity Building 681,445$        Declined Marin RCD [Soil Hub] Tools and technology for program and project management - Salesforce integration; outreach t  
49 CDFA Healthy Soils Block Grant w/Zero Foodprint 22,500$           Awarded 09/2023 Zero Foodprint [Soil Hub] CDFA Healthy Soils Program technical assistance and implementation - block grant pilot
50 NOAA Fisheries 8,000,000$     Declined Marin RCD habitat restoration and coastal resilience. Focus on salmon restoration. 
51 MCF-Kurland Marin Carbon Project Coordinator 50,000$           Awarded 06/2023 Marin RCD coordinate and scale carbon farming in Marin county
52 NACD TA2023 Regional Soil Health Hub Director 73,950$           Awarded 01/2024 Marin RCD [Soil Hub] North Coast Soil Health Coordinator for RCDs. Coordinate programs and staffing
53 OPR Enhancing Climate Resilience in North Bay 127,000$        Declined Gold Ridge RCD Urban rebate program to construct rainwater catchment systems
54 OPR Community Economic Resilience Fund TBD cancelled Marin RCD Feasibility study to build out biomass-related climate jobs (high road jobs)
55 MC Measure A FARE PRNS Weed Mgmt 100,000$        Declined Marin RCD Comparative methods of removal of Scotch Broom on PRNS rangeland
56 North Coast Wildfire Resilience Block Grant 250,000$        Awarded 05/2024 Humboldt RCD Equipment, fire prevention, training/workforce development, CEQA-NEPA permitting
57 NRCS Soil Hub Director 75,000$           Awarded 06/2024 Marin RCD [Soil Hub] Continuation of North Coast Soil Hub Director position
58 NACD TA2024 Regional Soil Health Hub Director 161,540$        Awarded 12/2025 Marin RCD [Soil Hub] North Coast Soil Health Director for RCDs. Coordinate programs and staffing
59 Tomales Bay Tire Removal 50,000$           In Progress Marin RCD Possible contract with the county to remove old tires in Tomales Bay
60 Zone 10-Inverness Flood Control 30,000$           In Progress Marin RCD Possible contract with county to address flood issues in Zone 10
61 COWGIRL 724,000$        In Progress Marin RCD Continuation of COW water quality program
62 Prop4-Climate Bond TBD In Progress TBD TBD
63 Carbon Cycle Institute TBD In Progress Marin RCD Fund North Bay Soil Hub director involvement in Bay Area Regional Climate Planning
64 WRA Mitigation 250,000$        In Progress Marin RCD Possible funding source for Chileno Creek Restoration Project



IDEAS
Requirements

1.    ☐ Cover Sheet
2.    ☐ Project Narrative
3.    ☐ Applicant Eligibility
4.    ☐ Application Questions
5.    ☐ Work Plan
6.    ☐ Budget
7.    ☐ Project Maps
8.    ☐ Design Plans
9.    ☐ Monitoring and Reporting Plan
10.  ☐ Management Plan
11.  ☐ Site Access Documentation
12.  ☐ CEQA Documentation
13.  ☐ Permits
14.  ☐ Photographs
15.  ☐ California Conservation Corps Consultation Verification
16.  ☐ Authorizing Resolution from Governing Body
17.  ☐ Payee Data Record (STD 204)
18.  ☐ Collaboration and Support Letters

RCD
Annual Plan
long range plan
mtg notives and minutes for 6 months via website
documentation of required match

crop farming help



3C 
 
 
ACTION: Amendment to Office Lease Agreement 
Board discussion and approval of an amendment to update lease terms and extend the lease 
for 3 years. 
 
Background: 

1. The offices leased by the MRCD were sold in 2022. Subsequent to the sale the lease 
became a month-to-month lease. The lease contains provision for the payment of 
common area maintenance expenses (“CAM”) to be reconciled annually. The rental 
lease rate that is in effect is $1.55 per square foot. The total monthly rent under that 
lease is $1,529.  

 
The amended lease contains several important changes to note (see attached lease and 
amendment): 
 

2. The lease will be extended to a 3-year term from January 2025 to December 2027 
3. The lease begins with a gross rental rate of $2.40 per square foot for the 2025 calendar 

year (a 55% increase) 
4. The per square foot lease rate will increase at a rate of 3% per year over the term of the 

lease 
5. The new lease eliminates the allocation and payment of CAM expenses 
6. The gross monthly rental rates will be $2,373.60, $2,444.81 and $2,518.16 for calendar 

years 2025, 2026 and 2027, respectively 
 
The finance committee voted unanimously to recommend the amendment to the office lease 
agreement the board for discussion and approval.  

 
Today’s Potential Actions: 

1. Board approval to enter into the amended lease. 
2. Board decision to decline entering into the amended lease and find alternative office 

space. 
 
Available Budget:  
The office space cost will go from $18,348 per year to $28,483 per year. the immediate impact 
to the budget will be $10,135 for 2025 and increase by 3% each year. 
 
Please note that we also received a reconciliation of CAM for 2023 that showed an additional 
balance due of $7,573.  
 
Additionally, the amendment shifts the risks and rewards of increases in operating expenses 
(CAM) from the RCD to the landlord. 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT (the "Amendment") is made and entered into as of 
January 1, 2025, by and between Pt. Reyes 4th Investor, LLC ("Landlord") and MARIN RESOURCE 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT ("Tenant"). 

RECITALS 

A. Landlord's predecessor-in-interest, THE BARN PROJECT, LLC, and Tenant entered into that 
certain Lease Agreement dated May 1, 2016 (the "Original Lease") for premises located at 80 Fourth 
Street, Suites #202 and #203, Point Reyes Station, California (the "Premises"). 

 

B. THE BARN PROJECT, LLC has assigned all of its right, title and interest in the Original Lease to Pt. 
Reyes 4th Investor, LLC. 

 

C. The parties now desire to amend the Original Lease to modify the rental rate, extend the term, 
and update certain other provisions as set forth below. 

 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into and made a part of this Amendment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Landlord Entity.  All references to "THE BARN PROJECT, LLC" or "Landlord" in the Original Lease 
shall hereafter refer to "Pt. Reyes 4th Investor, LLC". Pt. Reyes 4th Investor, LLC hereby assumes all 
rights and obligations of Landlord under the Original Lease as of January 1, 2025. 

 

2. Term Extension. Section 3.1 of the Original Lease is hereby amended to provide that the Term 
shall be extended for three (3) years, commencing on January 1, 2025, and ending on December 31, 
2027, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of the Lease. 

 

3. Rentable Square Footage. The parties acknowledge and agree that the actual rentable square 
footage of the Premises is: 

   - Suite 202: 581 rentable square feet 

   - Suite 203: 408 rentable square feet 



4. Base Rent. Section 4(a) of the Original Lease is hereby amended to provide that the Base Rent 
shall be: 

 

   Year One (January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025): 

   - Suite 202: $1,394.40 per month ($2.40 per rentable square foot) 

   - Suite 203: $979.20 per month ($2.40 per rentable square foot) 

   - Total Monthly Base Rent: $2,373.60 

 

   Year Two (January 1, 2026 - December 31, 2026): 

   - 3% increase on Year One rates 

   - Suite 202: $1,436.23 per month ($2.47 per rentable square foot) 

   - Suite 203: $1,008.58 per month ($2.47 per rentable square foot) 

   - Total Monthly Base Rent: $2,444.81 

 

   Year Three (January 1, 2027 - December 31, 2027): 

   - 3% increase on Year Two rates 

   - Suite 202: $1,479.32 per month ($2.55 per rentable square foot) 

   - Suite 203: $1,038.84 per month ($2.55 per rentable square foot) 

   - Total Monthly Base Rent: $2,518.16 

 

5. Expenses. As of January 1, 2025, any and all provisions in the Original Lease requiring Tenant to 
pay operating expenses, common area maintenance charges, property taxes, insurance, or any 
other expenses beyond Base Rent are hereby deleted and shall no longer be applicable. Tenant's 
sole monetary obligation under the Lease shall be the payment of Base Rent. 

 

6. Common Areas. The Original Lease is hereby amended to add the following provision regarding 
use of Common Areas: 

“Tenant and its employees, customers and invitees shall have the non-exclusive right to use the 
Common Areas together with Landlord and the other tenants of the building, their customers, 
employees, and guests and, subject to such reasonable rules and regulations governing the use of 
the Common Areas as Landlord may from time to time prescribe. The violation of any such rules 



and regulations shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement. A copy of the rules currently 
in effect is attached as Exhibit A hereto.” 

7. Notices. Any provision in the Original Lease regarding notices to Landlord is hereby amended to 
provide that all notices to Landlord shall be addressed as follows: 

 

   Pt. Reyes 4th Investor, LLC 

   Attention: Stephen Swire 

    

    

    

 

 Full Force and Effect. Except as expressly amended hereby, the Original Lease remains 
unmodified and in full force and effect. 

 

9. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Amendment as of the date set forth herein above. 

LANDLORD:   

Pt. Reyes 4th Investor, LLC   

   

By: _________________________   

Name: _______________________   

Title: ________________________   

 

TENANT:   

MARIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT   

   

By: _________________________   

Name: _______________________   

Title: ________________________   











































 3D 

   
 

ACTION: DISTRICT 
Board review and approval of Marin County Counsel reviewed Marin RCD Conflict of Interest 
Policy. ~ Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 

 
URGENCY: 
Moderately Urgent. We need to finalize this policy. We have let the County know we are making 
modifications.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
Per the State Political Reform Act, we must review and respond to the Board of Supervisor’s 2024 Local 
Agency Biennial Notice which indicates whether any changes will be made to our Marin RCD Conflict of 
Interest Code. We let the County know that we were planning on making changes to the policy, 
essentially adding a new paragraph which is described in the attached new policy.  
 
These changes were submitted to County Counsel for review. County Counsel has provided a policy 
that does not change the Board’s intent but instead refers back to government code. The new policy 
has the District adopting 2 CCR 18730 by reference and then identifying designated positions and 
disclosure categories by appendix.  This will ensure compliance with the Political Reform Act and will 
make updating the code much simpler.   
  
For Context, here is some information that led us to making these changes: 
 
The Fair Political Practices Commission website states the following: 

Local Government Agencies-Adopting & Amending Conflict of 
Interest Codes 
A local agency’s conflict of interest code must reflect the current structure of the 
organization and properly identify officials and employees who should be filing 
Statements of Economic Interests (Form 700s). A code tells public 
officials, governmental employees, and consultants what financial interests they 
must disclose on their Form 700s. It helps provide transparency in local government as 
required under the Political Reform Act.  

Biennial Review of Conflict of Interest Codes 
To ensure conflict of interest codes remain current and accurate, each local agency is 
required to review its code at least every even-numbered year. The agency should 
receive a Biennial Notice as a reminder of this obligation from its code reviewing body. 

The County Board of Supervisors is the code reviewing body for county agencies and the 
code reviewing body for city agencies is the City Council. 

When determining whether to amend, an agency should carefully review its current 
conflict of interest code and consider the following:         

https://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/rules-on-conflict-of-interest-codes/local-government-agencies-adopting-amending-coi.html
https://www.fppc.ca.gov/Form700.html


 3D 

   
 

• Is the current code more than five years old? 
• Have there been any substantial changes to the agency's organizational structure 

since the current code was adopted? 
• Have any positions been eliminated or renamed since the current code was 

adopted? 
• Have any new positions been added since the current code was adopted? 
• Have there been any substantial changes in duties or responsibilities for 

any positions since the current code was adopted? 
• If an agency answers “yes” to any of the above questions, most likely its conflict 

of interest code will need to be amended. 

It is important to note that the 2023-2024 Marin County Civil Grand Jury Report published in June 
2024 found no fraudulent or illegal activities in the handling of District funding, but provided the 
following findings and recommendations of which the Marin RCD is obligated to respond to separately: 
 

F1. Due to a lack of transparency concerning the details of the disbursement of Measure A 
funds, there is a public perception that there may be conflicts of interest in the way that the 
funds are being allocated. 
 
F5. Individuals from a small group of West Marin farming families that are often beneficiaries of 
Measure A funds are consistently among the members of the Marin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors, creating a public perception of conflicts of interest in the 
disbursement of public funds. 
 
R4. The Board of Supervisors should deny any grant application where Farmland Preservation 
Program funds will be awarded to any person, or their family, who is serving as a member of 
the board of directors of the Marin Resource Conservation District or MALT, or a member of the 
Measure A Community Oversight Committee. 
 

In May 2023, the CA Fair Political Practices Commission issued a response to a Conflict of Interest 
complaint against the District, stating that CA Public Resources Code Section 9412 creates a 
permissible participation on Board Members’ properties.  
 

 “Each district may provide technical assistance to private landowners or land occupants 
within the district to support practices that minimize soil and related resource degradation and 
support increased resiliency and adaptation to climate change. When in the judgment of the 
directors it is for the benefit of the district so to do, the directors may give assistance to a 
private landowner or land occupant within the district in seeds, plants, materials, and labor, 
and may loan or rent to that private landowner or that land occupant agricultural machinery or 
other equipment. Assistance shall not be given or loans shall not be made unless the landowner 
or land occupant receiving the aid or assistance agrees to devote and use the aid or assistance 
on their lands within the district in furtherance of objectives of the district and in accordance 
with district plans or regulations. Notwithstanding the fact that the landowner or land occupant 



 3D 

   
 

is also a director, any landowner is qualified to and may receive assistance or loans under this 
section.” 

 
The Boad may decide whether to address this matter in its Conflict of Interest Policy. It is clear that, by 
law, Directors may receive RCD assistance, however Board members may want to distance themselves 
further from the vote of any environmental projects happening on fellow Director’s properties.  
 
It is worth noting that the District rarely provides funds directly to a landowner. Environmental project 
funding is provided directly to subcontractors (biologists, ecologists, archaeologists, construction 
contractors). In ALL cases, funds are reimbursable only upon review and approval of receipts by the 
RCD project manager and funder and project inspections by RCD staff. There are at least two potential 
options: 
 
PAST ACTIONS: 
●    December 21, 1976. The Marin County Board of Supervisors approved the Marin RCD’s proposed 

Conflict of Interest Code  
●    December 15, 1998. The Marin County Board of Supervisors approved Marin RCD’s revision to the 

Conflict-of-Interest Code to include the Executive Director 
• August 14, 2024. Marin RCD approves new Conflict of Interest Policy with the addition of a new 

section to be reviewed by Marin County Counsel 
 
TODAY’S ACTIONS: 
Option 1: Board approves new Policy without any edits. 
Option 2: Board approves Policy with proposed edits.  
 
IMPACTS: (Describe alliance with RCD strategic plan and grant goals)  
The Conflict of Interest Code affects funding related to all programs in that public perception can affect 
the approval of ballot measures that the District relies on to implement its environmental programs.  
   
AVAILABLE BUDGET: 
N/A 
 
 
 

https://marinresourceconservationdistr.app.box.com/file/713171914752?s=lqda80mla46u3hspzgov8vd4qyfg6j4p


CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE OF THE 

MARIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

OF MARIN COUNTY 

SECTION 100. Purpose. Pursuant to the provision of Government Code Sections 87300, et 
seq., the Marin Resource Conservation District (hereinafter “District”) of Marin County hereby 
adopts the following Conflict of Interest Code.  

SECTION 200.  Code. The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000, et seq.) 
requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes.  
The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations 
Section 18730) that contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be 
incorporated by reference in an agency’s code.  After public notice and hearing, the standard code 
may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the 
Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 and 
any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby 
incorporated by reference.  This regulation and the attached Appendix, designating positions and 
establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the Marin 
Resource Conservation District (“District”). 

Section 300.  Filing.  Individuals holding designated positions shall file their statements of 
economic interests with the District which will make the statements available for public inspection 
and reproduction (Gov. Code Sec. 81008).  The District shall retain a copy of all statements and 
shall send the original statements to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Marin.  

Section 400.  Prohibition. Beginning January 1, 2025, in order to avoid the appearance of a 
conflict of interest, it is the policy of the District not to award any grants, loans or other financial 
incentives or instruments in support of practices located on properties of any officer or employee of 
the District during the period of service of the officer or employee of the District.1  The decision to 
award grants, loans or financial incentives to any officer or employee of the District will instead be 
authorized by another local, state or federal agency. This prohibition shall not apply to assistance 
provided by the District to an officer or employee of the district in implementing any practice, grant, 
loan or other financial incentives or instruments provided by the District or any other local, state, or 
federal agency to officers and employees of the District.   

 
1 Public Resources Code Section 9412 provides that resource conservation districts may provide technical 
assistance, loans, equipment and other assistance to private landowners within the district o support 
practices that “minimize soil and related resource degradation and support increased resiliency and 
adaptation to climate change.”  Loans and assistance authorized under Public Resources Code Section 9412 
may be provided to directors of resource conservation districts. (Pub. Res. Code Sec. 9412 
(“Notwithstanding the fact that the landowner or land occupant is also a director, any landowner is qualified 
to and may receive assistance or loans under this section.”).) 
 



APPENDIX A 

DESIGNATED POSITIONS 

 

Designated Positions   Assigned Disclosure Category 

Directors                 1 

Executive Director          1 

Director of Finance         1 

 

 

Category 1 

A designated position in this category must report all investments, business positions, interests in 
real property, and sources of income, including gifts, loans, and travel payments. 

Only investments in, and sources of income from, business entities, and sources of income, which 
do business in the geographic area of the Marin Resource Conservation District, or real property 
interests located in the District, need to be reported. 



Dear RCDs,   

We again discussed the need for a federal lobbyist to keep us informed and represent 
RCD interests at the federal level during these very difficult times.  Action  needed and 
additional information are below: 

Lobbyist Qualifications/Proposal: 

• John Sobel was recommended by a trusted source – Jon Barret’s lobbyist, Jayson 
Braude.  Having spoken with John and reviewed his proposal, I think he is an 
excellent fit. 

• His proposal is attached 

Why does CARCD need our own federal lobbyist when we have NACD to represent us? 

NACD represents RCDs across the country, some of whom have natural resource, 
agricultural,  and other priorities very different from those we Californians share.   While 
NACD’s advocacy is vital to RCDs, and the fly-in they are hosting in March is an excellent 
service, California’s RCDs need an advocate focused on issues that matter to California 
(wildfires, drought, climate, biodiversity, etc.), especially in the current political climate. 

Cost and Action Requested: 

• Total monthly cost is $4,000. 

• CARCD can cover $2,000/month for 6 months at least.  

• $2,000/month needed from RCDs for at least 3 months, preferably 6 months 

• Commitment with lobbyist is for 3 months, to begin with. Likely to renew 3-month 
commitments going forward to ensure continued ability to pay and satisfaction with 
service. 

• ACTION:  Enter your contribution amount in the google sheet linked 
here.   Requested by Tuesday, which is also deadline for acres and people info 
in our grants google sheet. 

Thanks in advance for your help. 

Best regards, 

Nancy Wahl-Scheurich (She/Her) 

Executive Director 

California Association of Resource Conservation Districts (CARCD) 

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1B6_ywFaUvD2o5jPVOvYsdZ0d_reQzsPkHRC7tv6d1XI/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1B6_ywFaUvD2o5jPVOvYsdZ0d_reQzsPkHRC7tv6d1XI/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1RQ0nYJ-fMgm0kTSP3SWPEI4AmOCowNoMpSivqJZuRKE/edit?usp=sharing
https://pronouns.org/


 

John Sobel, principal 
jsobel@telegraphadvisors.com 

 
300 New Jersey Avenue NW, Suite 300 

Washington DC 20001 
 

925-550-8624 (cell) 

202-643-3349 (office) 

 

 

PROPOSAL FOR FEDERAL 

ADVOCACY SERVICES 
 

 
 

Prepared for:  
 

 

February 24, 2025 

    

 



 

i 

 
 

 
February 24, 2025 
 
 
California Association of Resource Conservation Districts 
1017 L Street #556 
Sacramento, CA 95814-3805 
ATTN: Nancy Wahl-Scheurich, Executive Director 
 
 
RE: Proposal for Federal Advocacy Services 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
I write to express our interest in providing federal advocacy services to the California 
Association of Resource Conservation Districts (CARCD). Our firm has a proven track record of 
advocating successfully for the interests of local governments and associations before the federal 
government. Moreover, among lobbyists, we boast excellent knowledge of the state and have 
deep connections with members of Congressional delegation most relevant to CARCD. 
 
We believe our expertise in federal advocacy can be instrumental in addressing CARCD’s 
critical concerns and securing the outcomes necessary for positive change. Our proposal outlines 
a tailored approach to address the following issues primarily but not exclusively: 
 

• Establishing and strengthening relationships with key members of Congress, in both the 
House and Senate. 

• Navigating the direct and indirect pressures and challenges created by the Trump 
administration. 

• Interfacing with federal agencies, particularly as it concerns relevant grant programs and 
federal programs generally. 
 

Our lobbying practice specializes in two things: California matters (including small 
governments) and natural resources issues. We’ll work tirelessly to amplify your voice, knowing 
that our collective advocacy is crucial to your membership and the countless projects they 
support.  
 
We also emphasize our availability – both in-person and virtual. Our team members travel to 
California regularly, thus providing additional opportunities for face-to-face meetings beyond the 
minimum necessary. We also maintain a strong commitment to remain available via video 
conference and telephone well beyond work hours.  
 
We are confident in our ability to utilize our strong relationships with members of Congress and 
expertise before key federal agencies to maximize CARCD’s reach in Washington, DC. Together 
we can advocate effectively for CARCD’s interests and help secure the support necessary to 



 

ii 

achieve CARCD’s goals. 
 
We appreciate your thoughtful consideration of our proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Sobel 
Principal 
Telegraph Advisors



 

1 
 

Proposal for Federal Advocacy Services 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
SECTION 1 – LISTING OF PERSONNEL ................................................................................... 2 

SECTION 2 – STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS AND APPROACH TO SCOPE OF 

WORK ............................................................................................................................................ 4 

Approach, Process, and Effectiveness......................................................................................... 4 

Experience ................................................................................................................................... 4 

Presence and Staying Informed ................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 3 – LOBBYING AREAS OF EMPHASIS ................................................................... 6 

SECTION 4 – RECENT SUCCESSES .......................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 5 – CLIENTS LIST AND REFERENCES ................................................................... 8 

Current ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

References ................................................................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 6 – INTEGRATION WITH CARCD STAFF .............................................................. 9 

SECTION 7 – INSURANCE .......................................................................................................... 9 

SECTION 8 – RATE PROPOSAL ................................................................................................. 9 

SECTION 9 – CONCLUDING THOUGHTS ................................................................................ 9 



 

2 
 

SECTION 1 – LISTING OF PERSONNEL 

 
We draw on deep Congressional experience, which includes the following work histories: 
 

• Chief of Staff to a member of the House of Representatives from California 

• Counsel to a Democratic member of the House of Representatives from California 
 

John Sobel would serve as the lobbying team lead. Robert Harmala would serve as a strategic 
advisor. 
 

John A. Sobel, Lead and Project Manager | jsobel@telegraphadvisors.com 

 
John advises clients on matters of public policy, with a focus on California 
politics, natural resource issues, foreign affairs, and Native American 
affairs. John served as Chief of Staff to Rep. Paul Cook (ret.) for nearly 
eight years and spent his entire career in public service working for elected 
officials who represented rural areas. 
 

John has worked on innumerable issues specific to western states and local governments, 
including forest health, federal land challenges, water, and renewable energy. He also 
directed policy for the House Foreign Affairs Subcommittee on the Western Hemisphere and 
served as the congressional office’s liaison to numerous foreign governments. He has led 
successful legislative efforts and administrative lobbying efforts related to the Department of 
the Interior, Forest Service, Federal Aviation Administration, and US Army Corps of 
Engineers, among others. He led successful negotiations involving the US Marine Corps, 
Department of Defense, and multiple interest groups for 90,000 acres of land for public use in 
Johnson Valley, CA and helped negotiate inclusion of local land and environmental priorities 
in the John Dingell Jr. Conservation Act. 
 
John brings a wealth of experience to representing California governmental entities before the 
federal government. Currently, he represents the County of San Bernardino, working to 
promote “safety net” funding for hospitals, advocate for workforce development, and secure 
transportation dollars. John also represents the City of Victorville, CA and a number of 
Native American tribes throughout the West. 
 
Prior to working in Congress, John spent a decade working in the California State Assembly, 
where he guided a total of 33 bills to the governor’s desk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

Robert Harmala, Strategic Advisor | rharmala@telegraphavenue.net 

 

For 30 years, Mr. Harmala has represented clients before legislative and 
administrative bodies at the Federal, State and Local levels. Areas of 
representation include, among other issues – Consumer Products Safety, 
Native American issues, Housing, Animal Safety, and Defense/Homeland 
Security. 
 

Mr. Harmala is the founder of Telegraph Advisors, a government relations and policy firm based 
in Washington, DC. Prior to founding Telegraph, Mr. Harmala was the Chair of the Government 
Relations Practice Group and a Partner at the law firms of Jenner & Block LLP and Kilpatrick 
Townsend. Mr. Harmala was of Counsel to the law firm of Venable, LLP where he helped to 
found the firm’s Government Relations Practice Group and represented both his own clients and 
those of the firm. During this time Mr. Harmala utilized his extensive knowledge and network of 
contacts in lobbying Congress, the California Legislature, and Attorney General’s Office, as well 
as the cities of Washington, DC, Los Angeles, CA, and Oakland, CA. 
 
Mr. Harmala has also represented foreign governments, including Taiwan, Turkmenistan, the 
Netherlands Antilles, Ukraine, and India, before the United States Congress and the Executive 
Branch. 
 
From 1995 until joining Venable in 2001, Mr. Harmala maintained a successful solo lobbying 
practice splitting time between Washington, DC, Sacramento, Oakland, CA, and the 
Netherlands. 
 
Mr. Harmala began his Washington career as Counsel on the House Foreign Affairs 
Subcommittee on International Operations where he was responsible for issues including the 
State Department Authorization legislation, oversight of US international relations with 
international organizations, human rights, Israel, and India. At the Committee he maintained a 
Top Secret level security clearance. 
 
Mr. Harmala has also been both a professional and informal advisor to various Democratic 
campaigns at the national (Obama Presidential 2008), Senate (South Dakota, Kentucky, 
Wyoming), and House (California) levels over his career. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 
 

SECTION 2 – STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS AND APPROACH TO SCOPE OF 

WORK 

 
Telegraph Advisors is a bipartisan federal lobbying and consulting firm specializing in California 
matters. We pride ourselves in focusing on the needs of clients in this region and boast strong 
connections to influential policymakers at the federal level. We have strong relationships with 
both sitting Senators and the majority of California members of the House of Representatives. 
 
We take a personal approach to both client priorities and relationships with federal officials, 
knowing that our reputation and our ability to connect on a human level is key to our success.  
 

Approach, Process, and Effectiveness 

 

Our primary mission would be the faithful implementation of CARCD’s goals, advocating for 
specific legislation and legislative language, as approved by CARCD. As federal advocates for 
local governments, tribal governments, and an association, our team is accustomed to the 
identification and implementation of their key priorities. We have worked extensively to help 
clients develop legislative platforms. Our advice centers on determining which priorities are 
achievable legislatively; which are achievable through administrative action; and how political 
and legislative landscapes will provide or detract from opportunities to succeed.  
 
We are well versed in inserting client priorities into larger bills when opportunities arise (such as 
the Water Resources Development Act and omnibus bills), and we work diligently to secure 
Congressional hearings for client legislation and to bring attention to client priorities before 
Congress and the Executive Branch.  
 
Inherent in our successes, our team approaches legislative, regulatory, and funding challenges by 
leveraging relevant Congressional delegations and leaning on impactful officials in the Executive 
Branch. We have moved priorities large and small through a variety of routes – stand-alone 
legislation, omnibus-style legislation, and administrative action. 
 
Our practice embodies the core values of excellence and collaboration, working seamlessly to 
build the broadest possible coalitions in Washington DC. Our clients benefit from our 
collaborative bipartisan approach to federal lobbying, and we believe our reputation for fairness, 
work ethic, and execution is well established among Congressional offices and federal agencies 
who have worked with us. 
 

Experience 

 
Our team has the judgment and relationships necessary to help clients engage productively with 
lawmakers on both sides of the aisle and at all levels of government, as well as policymakers in 
the federal agencies.  
 
Combining both time in public service and time lobbying, our team has over five decades worth 
of experience working with local governments in various capacities. We have worked countless 



 

5 
 

issues on behalf of current and past governmental clients, including water, federal land issues, 
wildfire mitigation, illegal cannabis cultivation, conservation, housing, and more. 
 
We have also worked with associations, watchful of potential pitfalls within organizational 
structures. 
 

Presence and Staying Informed 

 

Many of our strongest relationships in Washington DC are forged with federal elected officials 
and staff representing California.  
 
Our strategy for building and maintaining relationships is simple in design but laborious in 
execution: We visit offices regularly, monitor staffing changes at all levels, communicate on 
matters both official and casual with members and high-level staff, and maintain a steady 
presence at political events year-round throughout the US.  
 
Our team has organized countless “fly-ins” for clients visiting Capitol Hill and relevant members 
of the Executive Branch. We are aggressive in creating and maintaining relationships with 
elected officials, personal-office staffers, committee staffers, and political staffers in the 
administration. Our efforts pay off with rapid responses to our inquiries on Capitol Hill and 
continuous dialogue with key decisionmakers in DC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 
 

SECTION 3 – LOBBYING AREAS OF EMPHASIS 

 
Telegraph Advisors proposes to provide federal lobbying services to CARCD. Our services 
would include but not be limited to the following: 
 

1. Congressional Outreach & Engagement: We will develop and execute a strategy for 
engaging with Members of Congress and their staff, including regular communication, 
meetings, and potential participation in relevant hearings and events. This will involve 
educating legislators on the priorities of CARCD, building relationships with key 
decision-makers, and advocating for specific legislative and funding requests.  
 

2. Federal Agency & Administration Engagement: We will assist in cultivating and 
maintaining strong relationships with relevant federal agencies (e.g., USDA, USFS, DOI) 
and administration officials.  
 

3. Earmark and Appropriations Requests: We will work to identify and pursue potential 
earmark opportunities and appropriations requests through state delegation members 
relevant to CARCD’s projects and initiatives. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

7 
 

SECTION 4 – RECENT SUCCESSES 

 

We measure our value in part based on tangible successes. Here is a sampling of our most recent 
and relevant achievements: 
 

• Secured inclusion of earmark language for our client, the Ak-Chin Indian Community, 
for a comprehensive water- shed system conservation project plan. (Note, FY2025 
appropriations bills still await final passage.) Relatedly, secured inclusion of language for 
our client, the Ak-Chin Indian Community, in the Water Resources Development Act of 
2024 to authorize development of a comprehensive flood control plan that addresses 
erosion, flood management, invasive species removal, wetland restoration, and water 
recharge. 
 

• Assisted our client, the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians, in receiving an 
Emergency Declaration from the Biden Administration following multi-million-dollar 
flood damage from Hurricane Hilary. Effort included coordination and advocacy of local 
Congressional delegation. 
 

• Led effort for our client, the Ak-Chin Indian Community, to obtain their first permit, 
issued by the US Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), to clear out foliage and sediment 
buildup in flood-prone washes. 
 

• Secured language within a Presidential proclamation establishing the Avi Kwa Ame 
National Monument to address future infrastructure needs. 
 

• Led successful opposition efforts against legislation, authored by a sitting member of 
Senate GOP leadership, which did not allow consideration of tribal claims to a 
hydropower facility. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

8 
 

 
 
SECTION 5 – CLIENTS LIST AND REFERENCES 

 

Current 

 

• Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla 
Indians 

• Ak-Chin Indian Community 

• Business Council of Northern 
Arapaho 

• Castle Mountain Venture 

• City of Victorville 

• Colosseum Rare Metals, Inc. 

• Cook Inlet Tribal Council 

• County of San Bernardino 

• Independent Beauty Association

 

 

 

  
   

 
 

   
 

  
   

 
 

   
 

  
    

 
 

   



 

9 
 

SECTION 6 – INTEGRATION WITH CARCD STAFF 

 

The team at Telegraph Advisors would be available as a resource to anyone at CARCD – per the 
CARCD’s discretion. This availability would include both regularly scheduled communication 
and irregular communication. We strive to make ourselves available beyond normal business 
hours and on weekends via video conference, email, phone calls, and texts. Additionally, the 
team finds itself in California frequently and is willing to meet in person whenever possible. 
 
SECTION 7 – INSURANCE 

 

Telegraph Advisors maintains general liability insurance at $1 million per occurrence (with 
automobile coverage) and professional responsibility insurance at $1 million per occurrence. 
 
SECTION 8 – RATE PROPOSAL 

 
We propose a flat fee of $4000 per month cumulative for three months for the following 
services, with the option to continue beyond this initial period: 
 

Advocacy consultation (non-lobbying), estimated at 50% of labor time $2000 

Federal lobbying, estimated at 50% of labor time $2000 

Total $4000 

 
In addition to these fees, our statements include out-of-pocket expenses related directly to the 
execution of our contracts (such as approved travel expenses and other minor incidentals). 
 
SECTION 9 – CONCLUDING THOUGHTS 

 

Telegraph Advisors is confident that our extensive experience in federal advocacy, coupled with 
our deep understanding of natural resource issues and California's unique landscape, makes us 
the ideal partner for CARCD. We are excited by the opportunity to advance the critical work of 
CARCD in areas such as watershed health, wildfire resilience, and agricultural conservation. Our 
proposed approach, detailed above, offers a strategic plan to support federal funding and further 
your priorities. We believe that a strong federal presence is essential to the long-term 
sustainability of California's natural resources, and we are eager to collaborate with you to 
achieve success.  We thank you for your consideration and look forward to the opportunity to 
discuss our proposal further. 

 
---- 



4A 

 
 

ACTION: FORESTRY AND WILDFIRE RESILIENCE 

A. Board approval execute $250,000 North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning and 
Implementation Grant Program Member Grant Agreement with Humboldt County 
Resource Conservation District. ~ Nancy Scolari, Executive Director 
 

URGENCY: 
A. Moderately Urgent. The sooner we can enter into a contract, the sooner we can bill for our RCD 

staff working on fire and forestry related issues.   

BACKGROUND: 

This $250,000 Grant Agreement enters the Marin RCD into a partnership amongst 11 North Coast 
RCDs to implement the $6M North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning and Implementation Grant 
Program. The goal of the program is to select, award, and oversee grants to public entities, 
California Native American tribes, and nonprofit organizations to conduct planning, community 
outreach, permitting, environmental review, and implementation of projects that will increase 
wildfire resilience through improved management of natural lands and open space, increased 
collaboration among land managers, and capacity building in CA’s coastal watershed counties.   

The Marin RCD currently does not have a fire/forestry resiliency program. In recent years the 
district has partnered with the North Coast RCDs where fire resilience is a priority. Many of the 
North Coast RCDs are well equipped with forestry staff and work crews and are ready to implement 
a variety of practices that range from vegetation management to prescribed burning. Marin RCD is 
able to learn from our northern RCD partners.  

RCDs are also well equipped to be the lead on CEQA authorization for projects which is the case for 
Marin RCD’s contractual relationship with Audubon Canyon Ranch.  

The Marin RCD’s soon to be released Marin Biomass Study may also provide recommendations in 
which the Marin RCD can play a key role in forestry and fire resiliency within the county.  

This grant will allow us to begin work on the following: 

• Staff training – Fire Forward trainings program and others 
• Equipment - TBD 
• Education/outreach/workshop for rural landowners/ag producers 
• Participation in county fire resiliency meetings 
• CEQA authorizations using the CA Vegetative Treatment Plan 
• The integration of fire into existing planning efforts (Biomass) 
• Identification of treatment areas 
• Implementation - TBD 

PAST RCD ACTIONS: 



4A 

 
 

• March 2019. The Marin RCD Board entered into a Memorandum of Understanding for the 
Joint Exercise of Powers to increase coordination and collaboration, to improve work quality 
and efficiency, expand program impacts, and better support regional dialogue and 
information exchange while respecting local autonomy in the North Coast RCD Region. 

• December 2021. Marin RCD’s Marin Biomass Study is awarded funding by the CA Dept of 
Office, Planning and Research to assess biomass flows and utilization opportunities in Marin 
County. 

• February 2022. The North Coast RCDs finalize the North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning 
and Implementation Grant Program which identifies 16 RCD action goals ranging from forest 
stand improvement and prescribed fire implementation across land ownerships to the 
encouragement of biomass markets and support for local Fire Safe Councils. 

• November 2022. Marin RCD enters into contract with Audubon Canyon Ranch to act as CEQA 
lead and begin staff training related to the California Vegetation Treatment Program and 
work with CalFire.  

• March 2024. North Coast RCD members jointly submit a grant application to the CA State 
Coastal Conservancy’s Wildfire Resilience Program, with Humboldt County RCD as the lead 
applicant to implement actions identified in the North Coast Wildfire Resilience Plan. 

• April 2024. The CA State Coastal Conservancy awarded $6,000,000 to the North Coast RCD 
Region under their Wildfire Resilience Program. 

• February 2025. Marin RCD Board approved the North Coast RCDs MOU which lays out an 
agreed upon governance structure for the CA SCC Wildfire Resilience Program.  

 
TODAY’S ACTIONS: (* recommended action) 

Option 1*: Board approves agreement 
Option 2: Board does not approve agreement and requests more information or county counsel 
review. 

 
IMPACTS: (Describe alliance with RCD strategic plan and grant goals)  

Goal 3. Maintain and improve soil health and air quality 
Strategy 2. Support private landowners and agricultural producers with the implementation of  
practices that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, sequester carbon and support resiliency to 
climate change 

   
AVAILABLE BUDGET: 

Yes. This is a grant that will provide funding for staff to undertake training and allow the Marin RCD 
to pay for implementation.  

 
 
 

https://marinresourceconservationdistr.app.box.com/file/713171914752?s=lqda80mla46u3hspzgov8vd4qyfg6j4p


 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 1 

 
 

Humboldt County Resource Conservation District  
North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning & Implementation Grant Program 

Member Grant Agreement 
 

Grantee: Marin Resource Conservation District  

Amount: $250,000 

Grant Period: 4/29/2024 – 4/1/2029  

 

This Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the last date signed below 

(the “Effective Date”) by and between the Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 

(“HCRCD”) and Marin Resource Conservation District (“MRCD”) (“Grantee”), collectively the 

“Parties” and individually, a “Party.” 

 

WHEREAS, HCRCD is implementing the North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning and 

Implementation Grant Program, which provides funding to public entities, California Native 

American tribes, and nonprofit organizations for planning, community outreach, permitting, 

environmental review, and implementation of projects that will increase wildfire resilience 

though improved management of natural lands and open space, increased collaboration among 

land managers, and capacity building in Northern California coast watershed counties (the 

“Program”); 

 

WHEREAS, in pursuit of that goal, HCRCD has obtained a grant from the California State 

Coastal Conservancy (“Funding Agency”) to fund the Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Program includes grants to members of the North Coast Resource Conservation 

District Collaborative, 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises set forth in this Agreement, and 

for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 

1. GRANT TERM 

The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and ends April 1, 2029, unless 

terminated earlier as provided herein. This Agreement may be extended in increments of ninety 

(90) days by mutual agreement, in writing, by the Parties. Requests for extensions shall be 

received in writing no later than thirty (30) days prior to the end of the stated Grant Term. In any 

case, the term of this Agreement will end no later than June 30, 2029. 

2. GRANT 

2.1 Contingent Grant.  

a. This Agreement is subject to Funding Agency approval and is contingent 

upon compliance with the terms of this Section 2.1. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 2 

 
 

b. Within twelve (12) months of the Effective Date, Grantee must provide to 

HCRCD its proposal for its initial project or projects to be funded by the Grant (a 

“Wildfire Project”), which shall include the specific tasks to be performed 

(including plans, if applicable), the schedule for completion of the Wildfire 

Project, a detailed project budget, and evidence of California Environmental 

Quality Act (“CEQA”) compliance (if necessary). HCRCD will provide the 

proposed Wildfire Project to the Funding Agency. If the proposal is not for the 

full Grant Amount, the proposal should also state whether Grantee anticipates 

using remaining funds for future Wildfire Projects. For the grant awarded 

pursuant to this Agreement to become effective, the Funding Agency must 

authorize the Wildfire Project in writing. 

c. Upon Funding Agency approval of the Wildfire Project, the Grant Amount 

or portion of the Grant Amount receiving approval shall be deemed awarded to 

Grantee pursuant to this Agreement. No change may be made to the Wildfire 

Project or the proposed budget without HCRCD’s written approval. 

d. After approval of the initial Wildfire Project, Grantee may propose 

additional Wildfire Projects, which proposals must contain the same information 

required by Section 2.1(b), above. All proposals must be received on or before 

December 31, 2027. 

e. If Grantee fails to propose a Wildfire Project pursuant to this section 

within the time set forth in Section 2.1(b), this Agreement shall terminate and 

HCRCD may reallocate the Grant Amount to other recipients. 

f. If at any time Grantee anticipates that it will not be able to use the full 

Grant Amount, Grantee agrees to promptly notify HCRCD. 

2.2 Grant Amount. The total grant funding provided pursuant to this Agreement shall 

not exceed the total sum of two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000). The final 

Grant Amount shall not exceed the budget for the Wildfire Project proposed pursuant to 

Section 2.1. 

2.3 Disbursement Prerequisites. HCRCD will not disburse any grant funds until (1) 

this Agreement is fully executed, (2) Grantee has submitted a signed Federal Taxpayer ID 

Number Form (substitute IRS Form W-9), and (3) any other pre-invoice requirements 

imposed by HCRCD or the Funding Agency have been completed.  

2.4 Use of Grant Funds.  

a. Generally. In accepting grant funds, Grantee agrees that it will use or 

expend grant funds, or any portion thereof, only as provided for in this Agreement 

and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, agrees to purchase materials, 

equipment, or other property specified in the Wildfire Project proposal only for 

use in connection with the Wildfire Project authorized by this Agreement, except 

as may be otherwise provided herein. Grantee will not be reimbursed for, or will 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 3 

 
 

be required to repay, any grant funds not used in accordance with this Agreement 

and the Wildfire Project proposal. 

b. Grant-Funded Equipment.  

i. If the grant funds are used to purchase equipment that costs $5,000 

or more, each such piece of equipment is “grant-funded equipment.” 

Grantee shall operate and maintain each grant-funded equipment for 

wildfire resilience related purposes during its useful life. If Grantee 

determines that it no longer has need for a grant-funded equipment before 

the end of the equipment’s useful life, Grantee shall donate the grant-

funded equipment to a public entity or nonprofit organization that will use 

the grant-funded equipment for wildfire-related purposes. For the duration 

of the useful life of each grant-funded equipment, Grantee shall maintain a 

record identifying each grant-funded equipment, the expected useful life 

of each item, and the ultimate disposition (disposal or donation). 

ii. If the grant funds will be used only to purchase equipment, 

beginning twelve (12) months after the Effective Date and annually 

thereafter until the Wildfire Project is complete, Grantee shall submit a 

report describing the project work completed using the grant-funded 

equipment. 

iii. The requirements of this Section 2.4(b) will survive termination of 

this agreement. 

c. Prescribed Burns. If the project includes a prescribed burn, Grantee shall 

employ a burn boss certified under Public Resources Code Section 4477 to review 

and approve a written prescription of the burn that includes adequate risk 

mitigation measures. Grantee shall ensure that the prescribed burn is conducted in 

compliance with the written prescription. Grantee may employ a cultural fire 

practitioner in lieu of a certified burn boss for any cultural burns Grantee 

conducts. Grantee shall also ensure that the burn is authorized pursuant to Chapter 

6 (commencing with Section 4411) or Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 4461) 

of Part 2 of Division 4 of the Public Resources Code, and that the burn is 

conducted in compliance with any air quality permit required pursuant to Article 3 

(commencing with Section 41850) of Chapter 3 of Part 4 of Division 26 of the 

Health and Safety Code. 

3. STATE FUNDING 

3.1 Funding Agency. This Grant is funded in whole or in part by the California State 

Coastal Conservancy (“Funding Agency”). Grantee must comply with all of the rules and 

regulations required by the Funding Agency, which are set forth throughout this 

Agreement and in full in the funding grant agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 

A. Grantee shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 4 

 
 

any HCRCD requests that would cause HCRCD to be in violation of HCRCD’s 

agreement with the Funding Agency. 

3.2 Reimbursement. If Grantee claims or receives payment from HCRCD for an 

aspect of the Wildfire Project, reimbursement for which is later disallowed by the 

Funding Agency, then Grantee shall promptly refund the disallowed amount to HCRCD 

upon HCRCD’s request. At its option, HCRCD may offset the amount disallowed from 

any payment due or to become due to Grantee under this Agreement or any other 

agreement.  

3.3 Termination. HCRCD may terminate or suspend performance of this Agreement 

if the Funding Agency suspends or terminates funding pursuant to the terms of the 

Funding Agreement. In the event of suspension or termination, HCRCD shall be 

obligated to fund only that portion of Grantee’s work performed prior to the suspension 

or termination of the Funding Agreement. 

4. LANDOWNER PERMISSION 

4.1 If Grantee does not own the project site(s), Grantee shall, prior to beginning the 

Wildfire Project, obtain written permission to carry out the Wildfire Project from each 

landowner of the project site(s) and provide evidence of such written permission to 

HCRCD. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Grantee has obtained written landowner 

permission for access to the property on which the project will begin, Grantee may begin 

the project without permission from all landowners; however, Grantee shall submit 

written landowner permission for each additional property on which the project will take 

place before beginning work on each property. 

4.2 Grantee shall ensure that landowners will allow HCRCD and Funding Agency 

and their respective members, officers, employees, agents and representatives to access a 

project site under the conditions set forth in any applicable agreement between Grantee 

and the landowner.  

4.3 HCRCD will provide a copy of the landowner agreement to the Funding Agency. 

5. GRANTEE OBLIGATIONS 

5.1 Implementation. Grantee agrees to complete the Wildfire Project by [April 1, 

2029]. If the Grantee fails to complete the Project within that time period, HCRCD may 

withhold any or all of the Grant Amount, terminate this Agreement, and/or require 

reimbursement of disbursed Grant Amount. 

5.2 Reporting.  

a. Progress Report. Grantee shall submit to HCRCD a Progress Report 

quarterly or with each request for reimbursement, whichever is more frequent. 

The first report shall be submitted before or at the same time as the first request 

for reimbursement. Progress Reports are required even if there is little or no 

activity on the Project during the period.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 5 

 
 

b. Final Report. Within fifteen (15) days of the conclusion of a Wildfire 

Project or the Grant Term, whichever comes first, Grantee agrees to provide a 

Final Report on the use of the grant to HCRCD. 

c. Report Contents. The Progress Reports and Final Report shall include: 

i. Grant and matching funds expended for the reporting period and to 

date for the grant.  

ii. Supporting documentation of grant funds expended for the 

reporting period (i.e. invoices).  

iii. Written update on progress to date, challenges faced, upcoming 

milestones, and any additional need for support or modifications to the 

project timeline or budget. If applicable, the description of work 

completed to date must be accompanied with pre-Project and post-Project 

photographs and a final design or site plan of the Project. 

iv. Documentation of progress of or completion of the project, 

including photographs. 

v. Any products developed using funds from this program and any 

other relevant documents, including plans, photos, news articles, fliers, 

and other materials related to the Project. These products and documents 

will be shared with Funding Agency by HCRCD.   

vi. An inventory of all grant-funded equipment acquired pursuant to 

Section 2.4(b) of this agreement, including the remaining useful life of 

each item. If applicable, include a description of the work completed with 

the grant-funded equipment. 

vii. If applicable, appropriate data entered into metric tracking 

software. 

5.3 Site Visits. Grantee agrees to permit HCRCD and Funding Agency, and their 

respective members, officers, employees, agents and representatives to visit the Project 

site to ensure that the work being done or completed complies with the approved Project. 

HCRCD shall provide reasonable notice to Grantee to coordinate scheduling. 

Disbursement of grant funds may be contingent upon inspections by the Funding Agency, 

and reimbursement could be delayed if inspections cannot be completed promptly.  

5.4 Insurance. Grantee shall carry insurance as required by the provisions set forth in 

Exhibit B to this Agreement. HCRCD will not execute this Agreement until HCRCD 

approves receipt of satisfactory certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the 

type, amount, class of operations covered, and the effective and expiration dates of 

coverage maintained by Grantee. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 6 

 
 

5.5 Record Retention. Grantee shall establish and maintain records pertaining to this 

Agreement. Grantee’s accounting systems shall conform to generally accepted 

accounting principles, and all records shall provide a breakdown of total costs charged 

under this Agreement, including properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices and 

vouchers. Grantee shall permit HCRCD, the Funding Agency, the California State 

Auditor and their authorized representatives to inspect and examine Grantee’s books, 

records, accounts, and any and all data relevant to this Agreement at any reasonable time 

for the purpose of auditing and verifying statements, invoices, or bills submitted by 

Grantee pursuant to this Agreement and shall provide such assistance as may be 

reasonably required in the course of such inspection. Until the expiration of four (4) years 

after the final payment under this Agreement, Grantee shall retain and make available to 

HCRCD or any party designated by HCRCD, upon written request by HCRCD, this 

Agreement, and such books, documents, and records of Grantee (and any books, 

documents, and records of any subcontractor(s)) that are necessary or convenient for 

audit purposes to certify the nature and extent of the reasonable cost of services to 

HCRCD.  

5.6 Audit.  As required by HCRCD’s grant agreement funding this Agreement, 

Grantee agrees to and understands that grant funded projects are subject to audit by the 

State of California during the grant term and for up to four (4) years following the 

termination of the grant agreement. Grantee agrees that the State of California, including 

the Funding Agency (State Coastal Conservancy), and California State Auditor, and their 

designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and 

supporting documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. The audit 

may consist of examining and auditing pertinent books, documents, papers, and records 

including financial transactions and supporting documents, general accounting systems, 

internal controls, management practices, policies, and procedures pertaining to the 

performance of this Agreement. Grantee agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such 

records during normal business hours, excluding State of California holidays, and to 

allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to 

such records.  

5.7 Taxes. Each Party shall pay the taxes lawfully levied upon it by any governmental 

authority. Grantee is responsible for determining any tax consequences of receiving the 

Grant Amount. In no event shall HCRCD be liable for the payment of any taxes of 

Grantee or any other third party related to this Agreement. 

5.8 Compliance with Laws. Grantee shall obtain any and all necessary permits and 

comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to the 

implementation of the Project, including, but not limited to, as applicable, the California 

Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). HCRCD reserves the right to immediately 

terminate this Agreement if Grantee fails to comply with these requirements. 

5.9 Nondiscrimination. During the performance of this Agreement, Grantee and its 

subcontractors shall not deny the Agreement’s benefits to any person on the basis of race, 

religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 

medical condition, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 7 

 
 

sexual orientation, or military and veteran status, nor shall they discriminate unlawfully 

against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religious creed, color, 

national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic 

information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual 

orientation, or military and veteran status. Grantee shall insure that the evaluation and 

treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination. 

Grantee and its subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment 

and Housing Act (Government Code Section 12900, et seq.), and applicable regulations 

(California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 11000, et seq.), the provisions of Article 

9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Gov. Code §§ 11135-

11139.5), and the regulations or standards adopted by the Funding Agency to implement 

such article. Grantee shall permit access by representatives of the California Department 

of Fair Employment and Housing and the Funding Agency upon reasonable notice at any 

time during the normal business hours, but in no case less than twenty-four (24) hours’ 

notice, to such of its books, records, accounts, and all other sources of information and its 

facilities as said Department or the Funding Agency shall require to ascertain compliance 

with this clause. Grantee and its contractors shall give written notice of their obligations 

under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or 

other agreement. (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 11105.) Grantee shall also include the 

nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this Agreement in all subcontracts 

related to work under this Agreement. 

5.10 Drug-Free Workplace. In signing this Agreement, Grantee certifies that it will 

comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide 

a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions:  

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, 

distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is 

prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: (1) 

The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, (2) The person's or organization's 

policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, (3) Any available counseling, 

rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, (4) Penalties that may be 

imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

c. Every employee of Grantee who works on this Agreement will receive a 

copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement, and agree to abide 

by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on this 

Agreement. 

5.11 Prevailing Wage. Grantee shall pay prevailing wage to all person employed in the 

performance of any part of the work under this Agreement if required by law to do so. 

Grantee is responsible for determining whether a Wildfire Project is subject to prevailing 

wage laws, complying with all labor laws applicable to the Wildfire Project, and 

budgeting accordingly. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 8 

 
 

6. GRANT DISBURSEMENT 

6.1 Disbursement.  

a. Grant Funds will be disbursed on a reimbursement basis. 

b. Grantee will be reimbursed for expenditures approved in this Agreement 

by submitting a request for reimbursement to HCRCD.  

c.  A request for reimbursement must include a description of work 

completed for the payment requested that can be clearly verified as allowable 

types of work/costs within the grant program. Grantee must also submit any 

additional information required by the Wildfire Project Description before 

HCRCD will release funds to Grantee. 

d. Grantee shall submit requests for reimbursement no more frequently than 

monthly and no less frequently than quarterly that detail the costs incurred by 

Grantee that are billable to the grant, incurred during the reimbursement period. 

Invoices shall detail all authorized expenses, provide an accounting of labor hours 

spent and by whom, and provide a brief description of the expenditure, to allow 

HCRCD to determine whether the amount deemed due and payable is accurate. 

All requests for reimbursement shall comply with Exhibit A, section VII. Grantee 

shall also include any relevant supporting documentation. Payment will be made 

on a rolling basis, and HCRCD will issue reimbursement within thirty (30) days 

of HCRCD’s receipt of funds from the Funding Agency. 

e. Notwithstanding Section 8.1(d), HCRCD may make payments in the 

amount of ninety-five percent (95%) of the amount requested, withholding five 

percent (5%) in light of Exhibit A, section VII. Any withheld amount shall be 

paid to Grantee within thirty (30) days of HCRCD’s receipt of the withheld funds 

from the Funding Agency. 

6.2 Allowable Costs. Only costs approved as part of the Wildfire Project proposal are 

allowable costs under this Agreement. 

7. PUBLICITY AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Grantee agrees that it will provide credit to the Funding Agency on any signs, demonstrations, 

promotional materials, advertisements, publications and exhibits prepared or approved by 

Grantee referencing work under this Agreement. 

8. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 

HCRCD and its directors, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from any liability, claims, 

suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, 

losses, expenses, or costs (including, without limitation, costs and fees of litigation including 

attorneys’ fees) (“Claims”) of any kind whatsoever without restriction or limitation, incurred in 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 9 

 
 

relation to, as a consequence of, or arising out of or in any way attributable actually, allegedly, or 

impliedly, in whole or in part, to performance of this Agreement, including any Claims related to 

work performed to complete the Project and payments therefor. All obligations under this 

provision are to be paid by Grantee as they are incurred by HCRCD. If Grantee is a public entity, 

this Agreement supersedes any right Grantee may have as a public entity to indemnity and 

contribution, as provided in California Government Code section 895, et seq. This Section 10 

shall survive termination of the Agreement. 

9. NOTICE 

Any notices required pursuant to this Agreement shall be sent in writing to the persons below, 

which will be considered effective on the date of personal delivery, or the date confirmed by a 

reputable overnight delivery service, or on the fifth (5th) calendar day after deposit in the United 

States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified, or the next business day following email 

submission: 

 

If to HCRCD:  Jill Demers  

5630 South Broadway St 

Eureka, CA 95501 

jill@hcrcd.org  

 

If to Grantee : Nancy Scolari  

P.O. Box 146 

80 4th Street, Suite 202 

Point Reyes Station, CA 94956 

nancy@marinrcd.org  

 

10. ASSIGNMENT AND SURVIVAL 

Grantee shall not assign, sublease, hypothecate, or transfer this Agreement, or any interest 

therein, directly or indirectly, by operation of law or otherwise, without prior written consent of 

HCRCD, which may be given or withheld at HCRCD’s sole discretion. Any attempt by Grantee 

to assign, sublease, hypothecate, or transfer this Agreement without such consent of HCRCD 

will be null and void. This Agreement shall be binding on any heirs, assigns and successors-in-

interest to the Grantee. 

11. TERMINATION 

11.1 Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, 

by providing twenty-five (25) days’ notice in writing to the other party. HCRCD may 

terminate this Agreement at any time without prior notice in the event that Grantee 

commits a material breach of the terms of this Agreement. Upon termination, this 

Agreement shall become of no further force or effect whatsoever, and each of the parties 

hereto shall be relieved and discharged from their obligations under this Agreement, 

subject to payment for acceptable grant implementation work carried out prior to the 

expiration of the notice of termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all provisions 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588

mailto:jill@hcrcd.org
mailto:nancy@marinrcd.org


 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 10 

 
 

which by their nature must continue after the Agreement expires or is terminated shall 

survive the Agreement and remain in full force and effect, including but not limited to the 

provisions of this Agreement concerning Grant-Funded Equipment (Section 4.5(b)) 

Indemnification (Section 10); Governing Law, and Venue (Section 14.1); and Dispute 

Resolution (Section 14.2); and Attorneys’ Fees (Section 14.3) 

11.2 Russia Sanctions. Under Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-6-22, 

state agencies are directed to terminate contracts and grants with, and to refrain from 

entering any new contracts or grants with, individuals or entities that are determined to be 

a target of Economic Sanctions. “Economic Sanctions” refers to sanctions imposed by the 

U.S. government in response to Russia’s actions in Ukraine, as well as any sanctions 

imposed under state law. Accordingly, should the Funding Agency determine Grantee is 

a target of Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned 

individuals or entities, which shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement. 

HCRCD or the Funding Agency shall provide Grantee advance written notice of such 

termination, allowing Grantee at least thirty (30) calendar days to provide a written 

response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the Funding Agency. 

12. MISCELLANEOUS 

12.1 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State 

of California. Any lawsuits filed related to this Agreement must be filed with the 

Superior Court for the County of Sacramento, State of California or the U.S. District 

Court for the Eastern District of California.  

12.2 Dispute Resolution. The Parties shall make a good faith effort to settle any dispute 

arising under this Agreement. If the Parties fail to resolve such disputes, they shall submit 

them to nonbinding mediation in California at equal shared expense of the Parties for at 

least eight (8) hours of mediation. If mediation does not arrive at a satisfactory result, 

arbitration, if agreed to by all Parties, or litigation may be pursued. If the parties elect 

arbitration, the Parties shall share expenses equally, and the arbitrator’s award must be 

supported by law and substantial evidence and include detailed written findings of law 

and fact. 

12.3 Attorneys’ Fees. If either party initiates legal action, files a complaint or cross-

complaint, or pursues arbitration, appeal, or other proceedings to enforce its rights or a 

judgment in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

12.4 Waiver. Neither the acknowledgement of work or disbursement of grant funds 

pursuant to this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any rights or obligations arising 

under this Agreement. The failure by HCRCD to enforce any of Grantee’s obligations or 

to exercise HCRCD’s rights shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so 

thereafter. 

12.5 Notice of Nonrenewal. Grantee understands and agrees that there is no 

representation, implication, or understanding that Grantee may be entitled to grant funds 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 11 

 
 

in the future or that the work or other activity funded by HCRCD pursuant to this 

Agreement will be funded by HCRCD under a new agreement following expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. Grantee waives all rights or claims related to any failure 

by HCRCD to continue to fund all or any such activities by Grantee following the 

expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

12.6 Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no intended third party beneficiaries of this 

Agreement. 

12.7 Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the full and complete 

understanding of every kind or nature between the parties, and supersedes any other 

agreement(s) and understanding(s) on this subject, either oral or written, between the 

parties. Any modification of this Agreement will be effective only if in writing and 

signed by each party’s authorized representative. No verbal agreement or implied 

covenant will be valid to amend or abridge this Agreement. If there is any inconsistency 

between any term, clause, or provision of the main Agreement and any term, clause, or 

provision of the attachments or exhibits thereto, the terms of the main Agreement shall 

prevail and be controlling unless otherwise indicated. 

12.8 Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or its application to a 

particular situation, is found by the court to be void, invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, 

such term or provision shall remain in force and effect to the extent allowed by such 

ruling. All other terms and provisions of this Agreement or their application to specific 

situations shall remain in full force and effect. The parties agree to work in good faith to 

amend this Agreement to carry out its intent. 

12.9 Execution. Each individual executing this Agreement, on behalf of one of the 

Parties, represents that he or she is duly authorized to sign and deliver the Agreement on 

behalf of such party and that this Agreement is binding on such party in accordance with 

its terms. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the 

same instrument. 

12.10 Electronic Signatures. Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the Parties agree that 

an electronic signature to this Agreement and an electronic copy of this Agreement have 

the same force and legal effect as an original ink signature transmitted in hard copy (e.g., 

transmission via email of a .pdf file containing a scanned or digitally applied signature). 

12.11 Independent Entity. Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way be construed to 

establish Grantee as an agent, employee, or representative of HCRCD. Without limiting 

the generality of the foregoing, Grantee is not authorized to bind HCRCD to any liability 

or obligation or to represent that Grantee has any such authority. Grantee shall bear all 

expenses associated with performance of this Agreement, except as expressly provided 

herein.  

12.12 Negotiated Agreement. This Agreement shall be considered for all purposes as 

prepared through the joint efforts of the Parties. Therefore, doubtful or ambiguous 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

HCRCD – Grant Agreement  Page 12 

 
 

provisions, if any, contained in this Agreement shall not be construed against the Party 

who physically drafted and prepared it. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 

their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written. 

 

HUMBOLDT COUNTY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT:  

 

By: ____________________________ Date: __________________ 

 
Jill Demers, HCRCD Executive Director  

 
 
MARIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT:  

 

By: ____________________________ Date: __________________ 

 

Nancy Scolari, MRCD Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

 

Exhibit A: Funding Agency Grant Agreement 

Exhibit B: Insurance Requirements

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588

2/27/2025



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Funding Agency Grant Agreement 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
State Coastal Conservancy 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
Grant - Rev 11/20  
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this        day of  ______________, 2024 in the  
State of California, by and between:  

 
 

 and 
 
. 

 

I. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 31113 of Division 21 of the California Public Resources Code, the State Coastal Conservancy 
(“the Conservancy”) hereby grants to the Humboldt County Resources Conservation District (“the grantee”) a sum 
not to exceed $6,000,000 (six million dollars) (“funds”), subject to this agreement.   
 

(Continued on the following pages) 
 

 

The provisions on the following pages constitute a part of this agreement. 
This agreement has been executed by the parties as shown below. 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GRANTEE 
AGENCY GRANTEE (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 
State Coastal Conservancy Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
BY (Authorized Signature) BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
 

 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  OF PERSON SIGNING PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Amy Hutzel, Executive Officer Jill Demers, Executive Director 
ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER 
1515 Clay Street, 10th Floor 
Oakland, CA 94612          
                                                      Phone: (510) 286-1015 

5630 South Broadway 
Eureka, CA  95503-6905 
                                            Phone: (707) 442-6058 #5 

       

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BY 
THIS DOCUMENT 
 

$6,000,000.00 

PROGRAM/CATEGORY 

 
Local Assistance 

FUND TITLE/PROP NO. 

 
General Fund 

 
I certify that this 

agreement is exempt 
from Department of 
General Services’ 

approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Erika Gomez 
Procurement and 

Contracts Manager 

PRIOR AMOUNT 
ENCUMBERED FOR THIS 
AGREEMENT 

FUND ITEM 

 
 CHAPTER STATUTE FISCALYEAR 

 
$-0- 

3760-102-0001(B) 
 
 

12 2023 23/24 

TOTAL AMOUNT 
ENCUMBERED TO DATE 

PROJECT NAME 

$6,000,000.00 North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning and Implementation Program 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

NAME AND SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE 
 
 

 

         
 

AGREEMENT NUMBER AM. NO. 

23-163  
TAXPAYERS FEDERAL EMPLOYER 
IDENTIFICATION NO. 

68-0343035 

AGENCY 
State Coastal Conservancy 
GRANTEE'S  NAME 

Humboldt County Resources Conservation District 

4/29/2024

April29th

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 2 
 
 
The grantee shall use the funds to complete the following project (“the project”) within the North 
Coast Resource Conservation District Collaborative boundaries (Del Norte County, Humboldt 
County, Lake County, Marin County, Mendocino County, Napa County, Siskiyou County, 
Sonoma County, and Trinity County), as shown on Exhibit 1, which is incorporated by reference 
and attached. 
 
The project consists of establishing and operating the North Coast Wildfire Resilience Planning 
and Implementation Grant Program (“Grant Program”). The Grant Program will select, award, 
and oversee grants to public entities, California Native American tribes, and nonprofit 
organizations for planning, community outreach, permitting, environmental review, and 
implementation of projects that will increase wildfire resilience through improved management 
of natural lands and open space, increased collaboration among land managers, and capacity 
building in northern California coastal watershed counties (“wildfire projects”). In carrying out 
the project, the grantee will coordinate with the 11 members of the North Coast Resource 
Conservation District Collaborative (Del Norte RCD, Gold Ridge RCD, Humboldt County RCD, 
Lake County RCD, Marin County RCD, Mendocino County RCD, Napa County RCD, Shasta 
Valley RCD, Siskiyou RCD, Sonoma RCD, and Trinity County RCD). 
 
The grantee shall carry out the project in accordance with this agreement.   
 

II. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO COMMENCEMENT OF PROJECT AND 
DISBURSEMENT 

A. The grantee shall not begin the project and the Conservancy will not be obligated to disburse 
any funds unless and until the following conditions precedent have been met: 

 
 The decision-making body of the grantee has adopted a resolution designating positions 

whose incumbents are authorized to negotiate and execute this agreement and 
amendments to it on behalf of the grantee.     

 
 The Executive Officer of the Conservancy (“the Executive Officer”) has approved in 

writing: 
 

a.  A work program for the project, as provided in section “VI. WORK PROGRAM.” 
 
b. All contractors that the grantee intends to retain in connection with the project. 

 
c. A plan for acknowledgement of Conservancy funding for the project. 
 

B. The grantee shall not commence granting funds for any particular wildfire project, and the 
Conservancy shall not be obligated to disburse any funds for that wildfire project, unless and 
until the following conditions precedent have been met: 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 3 
 
 

1. The Conservancy has authorized, in writing, the funding of the wildfire project.  For 
projects that are subject to CEQA, Conservancy authorization shall be by the 
Conservancy at a public meeting.  For projects that are exempt from CEQA, Conservancy 
authorization may be by the Executive Officer.  

 
2. The Executive Officer has approved in writing: 

 
a. A written agreement between the grantee and the grant recipient. 
 
b. A work program for the wildfire project that is consistent with the “VI.  WORK 

PROGRAM” section below. 
 

III. ADDITIONAL GRANT CONDITIONS 

The grantee shall also meet the following conditions:    
 
1. The grantee shall prepare and submit to the Conservancy for approval, project selection 

criteria for the Grant Program, which criteria must include priority for wildfire projects that: 
 
a. Address high wildfire risk areas identified in Community Wildfire Protection Plan or 
 other wildfire resilience/prevention plans. 
 
b. Are outlined in the California Wildfire and Forest Resilience Action Plan. 
 
c. Provide significant public benefit. 
 
d. Benefit disadvantaged or underserved communities. 
 
e. Lead to longer term resilience or more sustainable benefits. 
 
f. Benefit public or protected lands. 
 
g. Leverage resources through coordination across jurisdictions. 
 

2. The grantee shall require each grant recipient to enter into an agreement that includes the 
following requirements: 
 
a. If the funds are used to purchase equipment that costs $5,000 or more, each such piece of 

equipment is a “grant-funded equipment.” The grantee shall operate and maintain each 
grant-funded equipment for wildfire resilience related purposes during its useful life. If 
the grantee determines that it no longer has need for a grant-funded equipment before the 
end of the equipment’s useful life, the grantee shall donate the grant-funded equipment to 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 4 
 
 

a public entity or nonprofit organization that will use the grant-funded equipment for 
wildfire-related purposes. For the duration of the useful life of each grant-funded 
equipment, the grantee shall maintain a record identifying each grant-funded equipment, 
the expected useful life of each item, and the ultimate disposition (disposal or donation). 
The requirements of this section will survive termination of this agreement.  

 
If the funds will be used only to purchase equipment, beginning 12 months after the 
effective date of the agreement and annually thereafter until the project is complete, the 
grantee shall submit a report describing the project work completed using the grant-
funded equipment.  

 
b. Prescribed burns.  If the project includes a prescribed burn, the grantee shall employ a 

burn boss certified under Public Resources Code section 4477 to review and approve a 
written prescription of the burn that includes adequate risk mitigation measures.  The 
grantee shall ensure that the prescribed burn is conducted in compliance with the written 
prescription.  The grantee may employ a cultural fire practitioner in lieu of a certified 
burn boss for any cultural burns the grantee conducts.  The grantee shall also ensure that 
the burn is authorized pursuant to Chapter 6 (commencing with Section 4411) or Chapter 
7 (commencing with Section 4461) of Part 2 of Division 4 of the Public Resources Code, 
and that the burn is conducted in compliance with any air quality permit required 
pursuant to Article 3 (commencing with Section 41850) of Chapter 3 of Part 4 of 
Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code.  

 
c. If the grantee does not own the project site(s), the grantee shall, prior to beginning the 

project, obtain written permission to carry out the project from each landowner of the 
project site(s). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the grantee has obtained written 
landowner permission for the property on which the project will begin, the grantee may 
begin the project without permission from all landowners; however, the grantee shall 
submit written landowner permission for each additional property on which the project 
will take place before beginning work on each property. 

 
d. The grantee shall submit evidence that it has obtained required insurance coverage. 

 

IV. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This agreement will take effect when signed by both parties and received in the offices of the 
Conservancy together with the resolution described in section “II. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 
TO OF COMMENCE PROJECT AND DISBURSEMENT”.  This agreement may be signed 
electronically using a process specified by the Conservancy.  
 
This agreement terminates on January 31, 2030 (“the termination date”) unless terminated early 
as provided in this agreement.  However, the grantee shall complete all work, and require its 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 5 
 
 
grant recipients to complete all work of each wildfire project, by June 30, 2029 (“the completion 
date”).   
 
The grantee shall deliver a final Request for Disbursement to the Conservancy no later than 
August 30, 2029.   
 
The grantee, in reliance on the grant authorization, has undertaken work for the project 
commencing on May 1, 2024, prior to the effective date of this agreement. The work was done at 
grantee’s risk and without the Conservancy’s obligation to disburse funds to the grantee for such 
work. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Conservancy determines such work was necessary to 
timely completion of the project and was done in a manner consistent with the terms of this 
agreement, the Conservancy may, in its sole discretion, reimburse the grantee for the costs of 
such work. All project work undertaken prior to the effective date of this agreement for which 
the Conservancy reimbursed the grantee will be deemed to be within the scope of, and subject to, 
all terms of this agreement. 
 

V. AUTHORIZATION 

The signature of the Executive Officer of the Conservancy on this agreement certifies that at its 
April 18, 2024 meeting, the Conservancy adopted the resolution included in the staff 
recommendation attached as Exhibit 2. This agreement is executed under that authorization. 
 
 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 6 
 
 

Standard Provisions 
 

VI. WORK PROGRAM 

A. Grantee Work Program 
 

Before beginning work on the project, the grantee shall submit a detailed work program to 
the Executive Officer for review and written approval of its consistency with the purposes of 
this grant agreement.  The work program must include: 
 

 The specific tasks to be performed.   
 

 A schedule of completion for the project specifically listing the completion date for each 
project component and a final project completion date. 

 
 A detailed project budget. The project budget must describe all labor and materials costs 

of completing each component of the project, including the grantee’s labor and materials 
costs and costs to be incurred under a contract with any third party retained by the 
grantee for work under this agreement. For each project component, the project budget 
must list all intended funding sources, including the Conservancy’s grant, and all other 
sources of monies, materials, or labor. The grantee shall review the plans with 
Conservancy staff. 

 
 A plan for acknowledging Conservancy funding for the project. If the grantee will have 

project signs, the plan shall provide for the Conservancy’s logo to be included on such 
signs.   

 
The work program will have the same effect as if included in the text of this agreement. 
However, the work program may be modified without amendment of this agreement upon the 
grantee’s submission of a modified work program and the Executive Officer’s written 
approval of it.  If this agreement and the work program are inconsistent, the agreement will 
control. 
 
The grantee shall complete the project in accordance with the approved work program.  

 
B. Grant Recipient Work Program for Each Wildfire Project 
 

The grantee shall require a detailed work program for each wildfire project (“project work 
program”). Each project work program shall include: 
 
1. The specific tasks to be performed and, as applicable, plans showing the scope, scale 

and methods to be used for the wildfire project.   

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 7 
 
 

2. A schedule of completion for the wildfire project, specifically listing the completion 
date for each project component. 

 
3. A detailed wildfire project budget. The budget shall describe all labor and materials 

costs to be incurred to complete each component of the project. 
 
4. For wildfire projects subject to CEQA: provisions for compliance with any conditions 

of Conservancy authorization to fund the wildfire project.  
 

VII. COSTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

When the Conservancy determines that all conditions in section “II. CONDITIONS 
PRECEDENT TO COMMENCE OF PROJECT AND DISBURSEMENT” have been fully met, 
the Conservancy shall disburse to the grantee a total amount not to exceed the amount of this 
grant, in accordance with the approved project budget and this section. The provisions of this 
section apply to the Conservancy’s reimbursement for (i) the grantee’s costs to carry out the 
project and (ii) the costs of each wildfire project.  
 
The withholding for this agreement is five percent.  The Conservancy shall disburse funds for 
costs incurred to date, less five percent, upon the grantee’s satisfactory progress under the 
approved work program, and upon the grantee’s submission of a “Request for Disbursement” 
form, which shall be submitted no more frequently than monthly but no less frequently than 
quarterly.  The Conservancy shall disburse the five percent withheld upon the grantee’s 
satisfactory completion of the project and compliance with section “IX. PROJECT 
COMPLETION”, and upon the Conservancy’s acceptance of the project. The Conservancy may 
disburse the five percent that was withheld for a wildfire project upon completion of such 
wildfire project and compliance with section “IX. PROJECT COMPLETION”, and upon the 
Conservancy’s acceptance of the wildfire project.  
 
Hourly rates billed to the Conservancy must be equal to the actual compensation paid by grantee 
to employees, which may include employee benefits. The grantee shall require its employees to 
keep records of their time spent on the project for purposes of documenting the employee time 
billed to the Conservancy. The Conservancy will reimburse the grantee for expenses necessary to 
the project when documented by appropriate receipts.  
 
The Conservancy will reimburse travel and related expenses in accordance with the rates set 
forth in “SCC Travel Reimbursement Rates for Grants and Contracts,” as posted on the 
Conservancy’s website at scc.ca.gov. 
 
The grantee shall request disbursements by filing with the Conservancy a fully executed 
“Request for Disbursement” form (available from the Conservancy).  The grantee shall include 
in the form its name and address, the number of this agreement, the date of the submission, the 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 8 
 
 
amount of the invoice, the period during which the work was actually done, and an itemized 
description, including time, materials, and expenses incurred of all work done for which 
disbursement is requested.  The form shall also indicate cumulative expenditures to date, 
expenditures during the reporting period, and the unexpended balance of funds under the grant 
agreement. 
 
An authorized representative of the grantee shall sign the forms.  Each form shall be 
accompanied by: 
   

 All receipts and any other source documents for direct expenditures and costs that the grantee 
has incurred.  
 

 Invoices from contractors that the grantee engaged to complete any portion of the work 
funded under this agreement and any receipts and any other source documents for costs 
incurred and expenditures by any such contractor, unless the Executive Officer makes a 
specific exemption in writing.  
 

 A progress report summarizing the current status of the project and the work for which the 
grantee is requesting disbursement.  

 
The grantee’s failure to fully execute and submit a Request for Disbursement form, including 
attachment of supporting documents, will relieve the Conservancy of its obligation to disburse 
funds to the grantee until the grantee corrects all deficiencies. 
 

VIII. EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS AND ALLOCATION OF FUNDING AMONG 
BUDGET ITEMS 

No increase in the total amount of this grant will be valid unless set forth in a written amendment 
to this agreement.  The grantee shall expend funds consistent with the approved project 
budget.  Expenditure on items contained in the approved project budget, other than overhead and 
indirect costs, may vary by as much as ten percent without prior approval by the Executive 
Officer, provided that the grantee first submits a revised budget to the Conservancy and requests 
disbursement based on the revised budget.  Any deviation greater than ten percent, and any 
deviation that shifts funds from approved budget items into an overhead or indirect costs 
category, must be identified in a revised budget approved in advance and in writing by the 
Executive Officer.  The Conservancy may withhold payment for items that exceed the amount 
allocated in the project budget by more than ten percent and that have not received the approval 
required above.  Any increase in the funding for any particular budget item will mean a decrease 
in the funding for one or more other budget items unless there is a written amendment to this 
agreement. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 9 
 
 
IX. PROJECT COMPLETION 

 
At any time after completion of a wildfire project, the grantee may supply the Conservancy with 
evidence of completion of the wildfire project by submitting a final report for that wildfire 
project that includes:   
 
1. Documentation of completion of the wildfire project in accordance with the approved project 

work program, including photographs. 
 
2. All work products specified for the wildfire project in the approved project work program. 
 

 A fully executed final “Request for Disbursement” form for the wildfire project. 
 

 If applicable, a list of grant-funded equipment for the wildfire project and the useful life of 
each item. 

 
 If applicable, a description of the work completed with the grant-funded equipment. 

 
 If applicable, appropriate data entered into metric tracking software. 

 
Within thirty days of grantee’s compliance with this paragraph, the Conservancy shall determine 
whether the wildfire project has been satisfactorily completed. If the Conservancy determines 
that wildfire project has been satisfactorily completed, the Conservancy shall issue to the grantee 
a letter of acceptance of the wildfire project.   
 
Upon completion of the project, the grantee shall supply the Conservancy with evidence of 
completion by submitting a final report by the final Request for Disbursement date set forth in 
section “IV. TERM OF AGREEMENT” that includes:   
 

 A report describing completion of the project according to the approved work program. 
 

 A fully executed final “Request for Disbursement.” A “final Request for Disbursement” 
means a Request for Disbursement that includes the withheld amounts and all remaining 
amounts for which grantee is entitled to seek payment, if any, pursuant to this agreement. 

 
The Conservancy shall determine whether the grantee has satisfactorily completed the project.  If 
so, the Conservancy shall issue to the grantee a letter of acceptance of the project and release the 
withhold amount pursuant to section “VII. COSTS AND DISBURSEMENTS”.  The project will 
be deemed complete as of the date of the letter. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 10 
 
 
X. EARLY TERMINATION, SUSPENSION AND FAILURE TO PERFORM 

Before the project has commenced, either party may terminate this agreement for any reason by 
providing the other party with seven days notice in writing. 
 
Before the project is complete, the Conservancy may terminate or suspend this agreement for 
any reason by providing the grantee with thirty days notice in writing.  In either case, the grantee 
shall immediately stop work under the agreement and take all reasonable measures to prevent 
further costs to the Conservancy.  The Conservancy will be responsible for any reasonable and 
non-cancelable obligations incurred by the grantee in the performance of this agreement prior to 
the date of the notice to terminate or suspend, but only up to the undisbursed balance of funding 
authorized in this agreement.  Any notice suspending work under this agreement will remain in 
effect until further written notice from the Conservancy authorizes work to resume. 
 
If the grantee fails to complete the project as required, or fails to fulfill any other obligations of 
this agreement prior to the termination date, the grantee will be liable for immediate repayment 
to the Conservancy of all amounts disbursed by the Conservancy under this agreement.  The 
Conservancy may, at its sole discretion, consider extenuating circumstances and not require 
repayment for work partially completed.  This paragraph does not limit any other remedies the 
Conservancy may have for breach of this agreement. 
 
Before the project is complete, the grantee may terminate this agreement for any reason by 
providing the Conservancy with seven days notice in writing and repaying to the Conservancy all 
amounts disbursed by the Conservancy under this agreement. The Conservancy may, at its sole 
discretion, consider extenuating circumstances and allow early termination without repayment 
for work partially completed.   
 
The parties expressly agree to waive, release and relinquish the recovery of any consequential 
damages that may arise out of the termination or suspension of this agreement under this section. 
 
The grantee shall include in any agreement with any contractor retained for work under this 
agreement and in each agreement with a grant recipient a provision that entitles the grantee to 
suspend or terminate the agreement with the contractor or grant recipient for any reason on 
written notice and on the same terms and conditions specified in this section. 
 

XI. INSPECTION 

Throughout the term of this agreement, the Conservancy has the right to inspect each wildfire 
project site to ascertain compliance with this agreement. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 11 
 
 
XII. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 

The grantee shall be responsible for, indemnify and hold harmless the Conservancy, its officers, 
agents, and employees from any and all liabilities, claims, demands, damages, or costs, 
including, without limitation, litigation costs and attorneys fees, resulting from or arising out of 
the willful or negligent acts or omissions of the grantee, its officers, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors, and employees, or in any way connected with or incident to this agreement, 
except for the active negligence of the Conservancy, its officers, agents, or employees.  The duty 
of the grantee to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as provided in Civil 
Code section 2778.  If the grantee is a public entity, this agreement supersedes any right the 
grantee may have as a public entity to indemnity and contribution as provided in Gov. Code 
Sections 895 et seq. 
 
The grantee waives any and all rights to any type of express or implied indemnity or right of 
contribution from the State, its officers, agents, or employees, for any liability resulting from, 
growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to this agreement. 
 
Nothing in this agreement is intended to create in the public or in any member of it rights as a 
third-party beneficiary under this agreement.  
 
The obligations in this section “XII. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS” will 
survive termination of this agreement. 
 

XIII. INSURANCE   

The grantee shall procure and maintain insurance, as specified in this section, against claims for 
injuries to persons and damage to property that may arise from or in connection with any 
activities of the grantee or its agents, representatives, employees, contractors, or volunteers 
associated with the project undertaken pursuant to this agreement.   
 
As an alternative, with the written approval of the Executive Officer, the grantee may satisfy the 
coverage requirement in whole or in part through:  (a) its contractors’ procurement and 
maintenance of insurance for work under this agreement, if the coverage otherwise fully satisfies 
the requirements of this section; or (b) the grantee’s participation in a “risk management” plan, 
self-insurance program or insurance pooling arrangement, or any combination of these, if 
consistent with the coverage required by this section.   
 
The grantee shall maintain required insurance from the effective date through the completion 
date.  
 
The grantee shall require each grant recipient to procure and maintain insurance consistent with 
all provisions of this section “XIII. INSURANCE”. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 12 
 
 

 Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

a. Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability coverage, 
occurrence basis (Form CG 00 01) or comparable. 

 
b. Automobile Liability coverage:  ISO Form Number CA 0001, Code 1 (any auto). 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of 

California, and Employer’s Liability insurance. 
 

 Minimum Limits of Insurance.  The grantee shall maintain coverage limits no less than: 
 

a. General Liability: 
(Including operations, 
products and completed 
operations, as applicable) 
  

$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage.  If 
Commercial General Liability Insurance or other 
form with a general aggregate limit is used, either 
the general aggregate limit must apply separately 
to the activities under this agreement, or the 
general aggregate limit must be twice the 
required occurrence limit. 
 

b. Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 
 

c. Worker’s Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability: 

Worker’s compensation as required by law and 
Employer’s Liability of no less than $1,000,000 
per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

 
 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 

declared to and approved by the Executive Officer. 
  

 Required Provisions Concerning the Conservancy and the State of California.   
 

a. At least ten days before an insurance policy held by the grantee lapses or is cancelled, 
the grantee shall provide the Conservancy with evidence of renewal or replacement of 
the policy. 
 

b. The grantee hereby grants to the State of California, its officers, agents, employees, 
and volunteers, a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of the grantee 
may acquire against the State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and 
volunteers, by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance.  Grantee agrees 
to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation, 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 13 
 
 

but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the grantee has received a 
waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 
   

c. The general liability and automobile liability policies must contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions: 
 

i. The State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers are to 
be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of 
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by or on behalf of the grantee; 
and with respect to liability arising out of work or operations, including 
completed operations, performed by or on behalf of the grantee including 
materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with the work or 
operations. 
 

ii. For any claims related to this agreement, the grantee’s insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects the State of California, its officers, 
agents and employees, and not excess to any insurance or self-insurance of the 
State of California. 
 

iii. The limits of the additional insured coverage must equal the limits of the 
named insured coverage regardless of whether the limits of the named 
insurance coverage exceed those limits required by this agreement. 

 
 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance shall be placed with insurers admitted to transact 

business in the State of California and having a current Best’s rating of “B+:VII” or better or, 
in the alternative, acceptable to the Conservancy and approved in writing by the Executive 
Officer.   
 

 Verification of Coverage. The grantee shall furnish the Conservancy with original certificates 
and amendatory endorsements, or copies of the applicable policy language, effecting 
coverage required by this clause.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and 
approved by the Executive Officer before work commences.  The Conservancy may require, 
at any time, complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements affecting the coverage. 

 
 Contractors. The grantee shall include all contractors as insureds under its policies or shall 

require each contractor to provide and maintain coverage consistent with the requirements of 
this section. To the extent generally available, grantee shall also require each professional 
contractor to provide and maintain Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to 
the contractor’s profession and in a reasonable amount in light of the nature of the project. 

 
 Premiums and Assessments. The Conservancy is not responsible for premiums and 

assessments on any insurance policy. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 14 
 
 
XIV. AUDITS/ACCOUNTING/RECORDS 

The grantee shall maintain financial accounts, documents, and records (collectively, “required 
records”) relating to this agreement, in accordance with the guidelines of “Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles” (“GAAP”) published by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.  The required records include, without limitation, evidence sufficient to reflect 
properly the amount, receipt, deposit, and disbursement of all funds related to implementation of 
the project, time and effort reports, and supporting documents that permit tracing from the 
request for disbursement forms to the accounting records and to the supporting documentation. 
 
The Conservancy or its agents may review, obtain, and copy all required records.  The grantee 
shall provide the Conservancy, California State Auditor, their officers, employees, and agents 
with any relevant information requested and with access to the grantee’s premises upon 
reasonable notice, during normal business hours, to interview employees and inspect and copy 
books, records, accounts, and other material that may be relevant to a matter under investigation 
for the purpose of determining compliance with this agreement and any applicable laws and 
regulations. 
 
The grantee shall retain the required records for a minimum of three years following the later of 
final disbursement by the Conservancy, and the final year to which the particular records pertain.  
The records shall be subject to examination and audit by the Conservancy and the California 
State Auditor during the retention periods. 
 
If the grantee retains any contractors to accomplish any of the work of this agreement, the 
grantee shall first enter into an agreement with each contractor requiring the contractor to meet 
the terms of this section and to make the terms applicable to all subcontractors. 
 
The Conservancy may disallow all or part of the cost of any activity or action that it determines 
to be not in compliance with the requirements of this agreement. 
 
The obligations in this section “XIV. AUDITS/ACCOUNTING/RECORDS” will survive 
termination of this agreement. 
 

XV. COMPUTER SOFTWARE 

The grantee certifies that it has instituted and will employ systems and controls appropriate to 
ensure that, in the performance of this agreement, state funds will not be used for the acquisition, 
operation or maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 15 
 
 
XVI. NONDISCRIMINATION 

During the performance of this agreement, the grantee, its contractors, and its grant recipients 
shall not deny the agreement’s benefits to any person on the basis of race, religious creed, color, 
national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic 
information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual 
orientation, or military and veteran status, nor shall they discriminate unlawfully against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, 
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital 
status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and 
veteran status.  The grantee shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of employees and 
applicants for employment are free of such discrimination.  The grantee and contractors shall 
comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12900 et 
seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, §11000 et seq.), the 
provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Gov. 
Code §§11135-11139.5), and the regulations or standards adopted by the Conservancy to 
implement such article.  The grantee shall permit access by representatives of the Department of 
Fair Employment and Housing and the Conservancy upon reasonable notice at any time during 
the normal business hours, but in no case less than 24 hours’ notice, to such of its books, records, 
accounts, and all other sources of information and its facilities as said Department or the 
Conservancy shall require to ascertain compliance with this clause.   The grantee and its 
contractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.  (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, 
§11105.) 
 
The grantee shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all 
contracts to perform work under this agreement. 
 

XVII. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

By signing this agreement, grantee certifies that it is in compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, (42 U.S.C., 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the 
ADA. 
 

XVIII. PREVAILING WAGE 

Work done under this grant agreement by grantee or by any grant recipient may be subject to the 
prevailing wage and other related requirements of the California Labor Code, Division 2, Part 7, 
Chapter 1, sections 1720-1861.   If required by law to do so, the grantee shall pay, and require its 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 16 
 
 
grant recipient to pay, prevailing wage to all persons employed in the performance of any part of 
the project and otherwise comply with all associated requirements and obligations. 
 
The grantee is responsible for determining whether the project is subject to prevailing wage laws, 
and for complying with all labor laws applicable to the project. 
 

XIX.   DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 

The grantee’s signature on this agreement constitutes the certification required by Government 
Code Section 8355 (Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990), which requires that all state grantees 
provide a drug-free workplace by doing all of the following: 
 

 Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person’s or 
organization’s workplace and specifying actions that will be taken against employees for 
violations of the prohibition. 
 

 Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following: 
 

a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace. 
b. The person’s or organization’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace. 
c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs. 
d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

 
 Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the 

drug-free workplace statement and that, as a condition of employment on the grant, the 
employee agrees to abide by the terms of the statement. 
 

XX. EXECUTIVE ORDER N-6-22 – RUSSIA SANCTIONS 

On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (“the EO”) 
regarding Economic Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. “Economic 
Sanctions” refers to sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia’s actions in 
Ukraine, as well as any sanctions imposed under state law.  The EO directs state agencies to 
terminate contracts with, and to refrain from entering any new contracts with, individuals or 
entities that are determined to be a target of Economic Sanctions.  Accordingly, should the 
Conservancy determine the grantee is a target of Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited 
transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that shall be grounds for termination of this 
agreement.  The Conservancy shall provide the grantee advance written notice of such 
termination, allowing the grantee at least 30 calendar days to provide a written response. 
Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the Conservancy. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Humboldt County Resource Conservation District 
Grant Agreement No. 23-163 
Page 17 
 
 
XXI. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY 

The grantee, and the agents and employees of grantee, in the performance of this agreement, are 
acting in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State of 
California. 
 

XXII. ASSIGNMENT 

Without the written consent of the Executive Officer, the grantee may not assign this agreement 
in whole or in part. 
 

XXIII. TIMELINESS 

Time is of the essence in this agreement. 
 

XXIV. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S DESIGNEE 

The Executive Officer shall designate a Conservancy project manager who will have authority to 
act on behalf of the Executive Officer with respect to this agreement. The Executive Officer shall 
notify the grantee of the designation in writing. 
 

XXV. AMENDMENT 

Except as expressly provided in this agreement, no changes in this agreement will be valid unless 
made in writing and signed by the parties to the agreement. No oral understanding or agreement 
not incorporated in this agreement will be binding on any of the parties. 
 
 
 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



Grants Pass
Medford

Eurek

Redding

Susanville

North Coast Wildfire

Reno

Yuba City
Carson Ci

Roseville

Sacramento

Fairfield

Stockton

Modesto

San Jose Merced

Resilience Planning and

Implementation Grant

Program Project Location

San Mateo Fremont

Pioneer Sennount

San Francisco* Sanj-eandro Llvennore

Concord . ,• Antioch

KlamathFalls •,
Altamont

Elk Grove

’CALIFORNIA

North Coast Coastal
Conservancy

Exhibit 1Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Insurance Requirements 

 

Grantee, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and 

require any contractors funded by the Grant to maintain for the duration of their work, and provide 

proof thereof that is acceptable to HCRCD, the following insurance as specified herein. 

 

1. Insurance Requirements. 

 

• Statutory Worker’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance 

coverage: $1,000,000 (Minimum per each accident for injury or death) 

• Commercial General Liability Insurance: $2,000,000 (Minimum per occurrence), 

$2,000,000 or 4,000,000 Aggregate (see Section 3, below) 

 

2. Workers’ Compensation. Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Grantee shall be 

provided as required by the state(s) in which the Project work is being done. The Workers’ 

Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of HCRCD for 

all work performed by Grantee, its employees, agents, and subcontractors. 

 

3. Commercial General Liability. Grantee, at Grantee’s own cost and expense, shall maintain 

Commercial General Liability (“CGL”) insurance for the period covered by this Agreement in 

an amount not less than the amount set forth in this Insurance Requirements document, 

combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work contemplated by this 

Agreement. If a Commercial General Liability Insurance form or other form with a general 

aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to 

be performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be at least twice the 

required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall include but shall not be limited to, protection 

against claims arising from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting there from, 

and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under this Agreement. Coverage 

shall be at least as broad as the latest edition of the Insurance Services Office Commercial 

General Liability occurrence form CG 0001. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the 

coverage.  

 

a. HCRCD and its directors, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be covered as 

additional insured on Grantee’s CGL policy. The coverage shall contain no special 

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to HCRCD, and its directors, officers, 

employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 

b. The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis, and not on a claims made 

basis. 

 

c. An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance and that no other insurance 

affected by HCRCD will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage. 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588



 

 

d. Any failure of Grantee to comply with reporting provisions of the policy shall not affect 

coverage provided to HCRCD and its directors, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers. 

 

e. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with an A.M. Best rating of A:VII or greater. 

 

4. Notice of Reduction in Coverage. In the event that any coverage required under the 

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other manner, Grantee shall 

provide written notice to HCRCD at Grantee’s earliest possible opportunity and in no case 

later than thirty (30) days prior to the change in coverage. 

5. Higher Insurance Limits. If Grantee maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the 

minimums shown above, HCRCD shall be entitled to coverage for the higher insurance limits 

maintained by Grantee. 

  

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 06DDC6E8-8C50-4B60-BBEB-80FFFE5C6588







































Flood Control Zone 10
A transfer of  funds

Marin RCD Board Meeting

March 12, 2025



Background… 

• Flood Control District wants to transfer remaining funds to the 
Marin RCD’s USC Program to spend in the zone, approximately 
$30,000.

• There will be an agreement to review and sign in April, if  interest 
exists.





History of  Zone 10

• Flood Control Zone 10 was established in March 1982 to address flooding.

• Zone 10 activities included; debris removal, creek restoration, and dredging. 

• Zone 10 derived all its funding from special taxes and grants.
• An annual tax of  up to $65 per parcel passed in November 1982.

• Zone 10 also received grants from the California Coastal Conservancy and other 
organizations.



History of  Zone 10 (continued)

• Special tax expired in 1986, the renewal tax measure failed. No other taxes 
have been proposed. 

• Zone 10 only conducts emergency maintenance and has kept the remaining 
funds in reserve. 

• Zone 10 has no easements, facilities, or properties that it maintains; all creeks 
are on private property or other agency right of  way.



History of  Zone 10 (continued)

• The 2022 Marin LAFCo Municipal Service Review indicated that Zone 10 
needed to pass more tax measures and potentially expand its boundaries to 
establish consistent Zone activities. 

• Marin LAFCo recommended dissolving the Zone in the absence of  strong 
voter support.

• Flood Zone Advisory Board members recommended dissolving Zone 10 in 
2024. 



Where we are today… 

• The Advisory Board recommended that the remaining $30,000 in funds be 
distributed for the benefit to local water quality and flood risk reduction 
(consistent with the Flood District’s purpose). 

• Flood Zone Advisory Board members pointed out that creeks in the Zone 
are experiencing erosion on private properties that leads to sedimentation 
that clogs culverts across Sir Francis Drake Blvd, causing roadway flooding 
in what is considered sensitive habitat. 



What’s next? 

• If  the MRCD Board is supportive of  this transaction of  funds, then the 
County will provide an agreement at our April meeting to execute. 

• Timeline: They would like to transfer the funds before the closing of  Fiscal 
Year 24/25 (by June 30, 2025). 

• Funds may be used to leverage grants, as matching dollars, to conduct an 
assessment to identify sediment sources and include prescribed actions to 
carry out. 

• Funds may also be used for projects that will contribute to improved 
conveyance. 



Thank You! 


	1. 2025.03 Marin RCD Agenda-Minutes
	2025.03 Agenda.docx
	AGENDA 

	2025.02 minutes in progress
	MINUTES


	2. 2025.03 Marin RCD Financials
	3B. 2025.03 MRCD Financials
	3B. 2025.03 MRCD Financials 2.pdf
	3B. 2025.03 MRCD Financials.pdf
	2. 2025.03 MRCD Financials 2.pdf
	2. 2025.03 MRCD Financials 3.pdf


	2025.02 Grants Status
	Grants 

	Grant Status (6) (20)
	Grants
	Ideas


	3. 2025.03 Marin RCD Action Items
	3C Action Item - Amendment to Office Lease Agreement
	3C MRCD.lease.amendment
	3C TheBarnLease 2016
	3D 2024.08.08 Conflict of Interest AP
	Local Government Agencies-Adopting & Amending Conflict of Interest Codes
	Biennial Review of Conflict of Interest Codes


	3D. 2024.08.09 MRCD Conflict of Interest Policy.kks.wo edits
	3E. lobbyist Dear RCDs
	3E. Lobbyist CARCD TA - RFP - CARCP v2[91]
	4A. 2025.02.06 Action Profile MOU NCRCDs
	4A. Complete_with_Docusign_MRCD-HCRCD_Subgrant_A

	4. 2025.03 Marin RCD Staff Report.docx
	Presentation 2025.03.04_PP on FloodControl Funds Transfer_final
	Flood Control Zone 10�A transfer of funds
	Background… 
	Slide Number 3
	History of Zone 10
	History of Zone 10 (continued)
	History of Zone 10 (continued)
	Where we are today… 
	What’s next? 
	Thank You! 




